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NOTICE OF 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 37th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) of the LA COMMUNITY 
BANK LIMITED will be held at Ebenezer Presbyterian Church Hall, Osu Accra on Thursday, 24th July, 
2025 at 10:00am for the following purposes;

AGENDA:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS 

1.  To receive and consider the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2024, together 
with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.  To declare dividend in the amount recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 subject to Bank of Ghana approval.

3.  To re-elect a Director, Kennedy Wiafe Effah Esq who is re�ring by rota�on, and has offered himself 
for elec�on.

4.  To elect one new Director, Dr. Joseph Gerald Te�eh Nyanyofio subject to Bank of Ghana approval.

5.  To authorize the Directors to fix the remunera�on of the Auditors.

6. To approve the payment of honoraria in accordance with the Bank’s policy to two Directors re�ring 
permanently a�er years of meritorious service to the Bank.

7.  To approve Directors fees and si�ng allowance

Dated this 10th Day of June, 2025

FITNAT ADJETEY ESQ
FOR IURIS CONSULT LTD
SECRETARY

NOTES:

1.  A copy of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2024 together with the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors will be circulated electronically and published on the Bank's 
website: www.lacommunitybank.com/site/investor-rela�ons/annual -report

All shareholders are encouraged to visit the website and print copies for their study and necessary 
ac�on.

2.  A member of the Company en�tled to a�end and vote is en�tled to appoint a proxy. A proxy need 
not be a member of the Company.
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Board of Directors Capacity  

Mr. Seth Nii Sodjah  Quao  
 

Chairman 

Mr. Dav id E.A. Oddoye Vice Chairman 
Dr. (Mrs.) Matilda Pappoe Member (Re�red on 1st August, 2024) 
Kennedy Wiafe Effah Esq. Member 
Isaac Nsiah Odoi Esq.  Member 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei-Aku Member 

 
Secretary 

 
Legal Advisor 

 
 

Fitnat Adjetey, Esq.
Iuris Consult 
9-11 Mama Markwei Street, Martey Tsuru
East Airport, Accra
P. O. Box 6798
Cantonments, Accra

Larry Adjetey, Esq.
Law Trust Company 
No. 43 Castle Road 
Adabraka, Accra

Registered office and
principal place of business

No. G224/1 Lami Jwahe
Post Office Box LA 499
La - Accra
Tel: 0303-969393
E-mail: info@lacommunitybank.com
Website: www.lacommunitybank.com

Independent external auditor UHY Voscon Chartered Accountants
2nd Floor, Cocoshe House,
Opposite Silver Star Tower
Agos�nho Neto Close
Airport Residen�al Area
Accra- Ghana
Phone +233 30 2683 430/4
Email: Info@uhyvoscon-gh.com
Web: www.uhyvoscon-gh.com
GA: -057-1475

Bankers ARB Apex Bank PLC
ABSA Bank Ghana PLC
Zenith Bank Ghana PLC

CORPORATE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2024

Company registra�on number

Tax Iden�fica�on Number (TIN)

Cs023832018

C000518536X

Mrs. Be�y N.A. Aryee Member 
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 banker and a lawyer in private prac�ce with work experience spanning over 19 years, AKennedy Wiafe Effah, Esq. is currently prac�cing with Nsiah Akue�eh & Co.at Kanda, Accra, an 
experienced law firm and consultants as well as notary public. He handles a prac�ce por�olio 

of briefs in immovable proper�es, banking and finance, labour and family ma�ers for both corporate 
and individual clients. He serves on the Board of Directors of the La Community Bank Ltd. He is also 
the Legal Advisor to the Kwahu Presbytery of the Presbyterian Church of Ghana.

He has previously worked with Macwest Ltd, a major corporate distributor for GHACEM Ltd, as Head 
of Finance responsible for budge�ng and strategic planning, funds management, management 
accounts and payroll.

Kennedy started his career in the banking and finance industry in 2006 with the Women's World 
Banking Savings & Loan Ltd before joining Intercon�nental Bank Ghana Ltd and then Access Bank 
Ghana Ltd in various capaci�es including corporate and retail banking, consumer banking, public 
sector banking, credit administra�on, internal control & compliance and due diligence in Accra, Tema 
and Kumasi.

Kennedy trained in accoun�ng from the University of Ghana Business School, Legon in Accra where 
he obtained his BSc. Admin (Accoun�ng) with Honours in May 2003. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws 
(LL. B) degree with Honours from the Ghana Ins�tute of Management & Public Administra�on 
(GIMPA) in May, 2015 and was called to the Ghana Bar in October, 2017 a�er his professional legal 
training from the Ghana School of Law, Accra. He also holds a Master of Laws Degree (LL. M) from the 
University of Ghana Law School in Corporate and Commercial Law (August 2023).
 
For voluntary services, he served as a Presbyter of the Presbyterian Church of Ghana, Christ 
Congrega�on in Darkuman, Accra from 2013 to 2021. He enjoys playing volleyball or soccer and 
watching movies as hobbies.

KENNEDY WIAFE EFFAH, ESQ
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From Boardroom strategy sessions to lively graduate seminars, Dr Joseph Gerald Te�eh 
Nyanyofio (BSc, MPhil, PhD, MIoD-GH) has spent the last decade turning bold ideas into 
measurable impact. A na�ve of La—rooted in the Nii Nyanyo Aben�a and Nii Nai Kwami Otum 

We royal houses—he blends the discipline of a former Standard Chartered Bank product-marke�ng 
execu�ve with the intellectual rigour of a public-policy scholar. 

Today, as Senior Lecturer in Policy, Management, Strategy, Leadership and Governance at the 
University of Professional Studies, Accra (UPSA), Dr Nyanyofio is one of the brains behind some of the 
ins�tu�on's most forward-thinking ini�a�ves. He was co-founder of UPSA's flagship Interna�onal 
Conference on Business Management and Entrepreneurial Development and brokered UPSA's first 
accredita�on partnership with the UK's Chartered Quality Ins�tute. He facilitated the nego�a�on of 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) that ushered UPSA's MBA Corporate Governance 
graduates into the Fellowship of Ghana Ins�tute of Directors (IoD-GH). His stewardship of mul�ple 
graduate programmes—MPhil/MSc Leadership, MBA Total Quality Management, MBA Corporate 
Governance, and more—has produced a new genera�on of ethically grounded, innova�on-ready 
managers across West Africa.

Beyond campus, Dr Nyanyofio has served on various governance boards, ranging from the Lapidary 
Ins�tute of Ghana to Labone Secondary School, and currently acts as Secretary to the Advisory Board 
of the UPSA Enterprise & Innova�on Centre. A prolific author in high-impact journals and a sought-
a�er conference voice from Accra to Leicester, he also channels his influence back home, 
spearheading the One Story Book Per Child literacy drive and mentoring pupils across La 
Dadekotopon. Whether shaping na�onal dialogues on public-private partnerships or handing a 
brand-new book to a first-�me reader, Dr Nyanyofio embodies the convic�on that scholarship is only 
complete when it serves society.

DR JOSEPH GERALD TETTEH NYANYOFIO

PROFILE OF NEW DIRECTOR STANDING FOR ELECTION



(All amounts are stated in Ghana cedi unless otherwise stated)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Five-year financial summary 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 

Interest income 15,445,678 11,734,666 9,847,942 11,401,844 10,208,944 

Interest expense (1,332,382) (909,715) (1,521,936) (3,233,060) (2,881,824) 

Net interest income 14,113,296 10,824,951 8,326,006 8,168,784 7,327,120 

Net fees and commission income 1,218,677 1,057,846 902,265 596,536 565,835 

Other opera�ng income 27,942 32,790 69,001 129,094 80,836 

Total  opera�ng expense (11,068,764) (9,786,530) (7,917,076) (11,654,811) (7,394,741) 

Profit/(loss) before tax 4,287,589 2,129,057 1,380,196 (2,760,396) 579,050 

Growth & sustainability levy (214,379) (106,452) - - - 

Income tax expense (1,129,992) (728,747) (166,834) 800,618 (42,254) 

Profit/(loss) a�er tax 2,943,218 1,293,858 1,213,362 (1,959,778) 536,796 

Total  assets 110,436,263 85,262,888 75,909,752 74,394,494 83,063,060 

Equity 8,152,912 5,405,694 4,245,147 2,889,695 4,846,973 

Total  liabili�es 102,283,351 79,857,194 71,664,606 71,504,799 78,216,088 

Total  equity and liabili�es 110,436,263 85,262,888 75,909,752 74,394,494 83,063,060 

 

Financial highlights 2024 2023 Percentage 
change (%) 

Interest income  15,445,678  11,734,666  31.62  

Interest expense  (1,332,382)  (909,715)  46.46  

Net Interest Income   14,113,296  10,824,951  30.38  

Net Commission and fees    1,218,677  1,057,846  15.20  

Other  opera�ng  income  27,942  32,790  (25.65)  

Total opera�ng expense   (11,068,764)  (9,786,530)  13.10  

Profit before tax   4,287,589  2,129,057  101.38  

Growth & sustainability levy    (214,379)  (106,452)  101.39  

Income tax expense   (1,129,992)  (728,747)  35.30  

Profit a�er tax   2,943,218  1,293,858  127.48  

Total assets  110,436,263  85,262,888  29.52  

Equity  8,152,912  5,405,694  50.52  

Total liabili�es  102,283,351  79,857,194  28.08  

Total equity and liabili�es    110,436,263  85,262,888  29.52  
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Dis�nguished shareholders, ladies and gentlemen,

Welcome to the 37th Annual General 

Mee�ng of your Bank. It has been a 

very challenging year, but I remain 

extremely posi�ve and confident about the future. 

During the past year, there has been a renewed 

focus on corporate governance. The Board has 

spent a significant propor�on of its �me examining 

and strengthening our processes throughout the 

Bank since having a solid governance framework is 

key to rebuilding trust and transparency in the 

Bank. Across the Bank, we have con�nued with our 

wide-ranging corporate renewal plans and I am 

pleased to say that these are very much on track. 

Through making some difficult decisions and pu�ng 

the customer at the heart of all we do, we are rebuilding the business while being conscious of the 

huge responsibili�es, not just to our customers, but to our cherished shareholders as well.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

Global economic condi�ons broadly improved in 2024 with infla�onary pressures gradually easing. 

These condi�ons were expected to result in improvements in investor sen�ments towards emerging 

markets and developing economies. Domes�cally, external sector condi�ons remained posi�ve, with 

sustained and stronger-than-programmed rebuilding of reserve buffers contribu�ng to the stability 

of the domes�c currency. The stronger-than-projected growth and generally improved 

macroeconomic condi�ons are spilling over posi�vely to the banking sector. While the infla�on 

ou�urn for the year 2024 deviated from target, it is expected that the disinfla�on process will 

resume, con�ngent on renewed efforts at fiscal consolida�on, which is an�cipated in the new 

administra�on's economic policy agenda. The Bank of Ghana's latest infla�on forecast shows a 

steady decline and return to the path of disinfla�on, with an extended �me horizon of achieving the 

medium term target of 8±2 percent.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE 

Despite the uncertain economic condi�ons, the La Community Bank's total revenue from opera�ons 

increased from GHS13.24m in 2023 to GHS17.07million in 2024 represen�ng an increase of 29% due 

to increases in Investment Income and Interest on Loans & Advances during the year under review. 

The Bank also saw increases in Fees and Commission Income during the year by 9% from 1.4m in 2023 

to 1.6m in 2024.

As you are already aware, the Bank has had some of its investments amoun�ng to about 

GH¢17million locked up a�er the 2018 financial sector clean up, and about GH¢35million in the 

Domes�c Debt Exchange Programme of which the Bank is making annual impairment of 

GH¢602,705.
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Total expenses rose to GH¢12.7m from GH¢11.1m increasing by 15% in the year under review. A�er 

considera�on of taxes, the profit for the year  stood at GH¢2.9million compared to the profit a�er tax 

of GH¢1.2m in 2023.

It is important to state that, within year 2024, GH¢150,000.00 of the locked up funds were retrieved 

for the Bank.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

During the year under review, Loans and Advances to Customers increased to 16.4m from 11.09m, an 

increment of 48%. This height was achieved through increased disbursements across all branches of 

the Bank. Total deposits and Total Assets grew by 21% and 30% respec�vely. Equity also increased 

significantly by 51% from GH¢5.4m in 2023 to GHS8.1m mainly due to profit made for the year.
Dis�nguished Shareholders, at this point I would like to take the opportunity to encourage all 

shareholders to increase their stake in the Bank in order to increase its financing capacity going into 

the future.

APPROPRIATION/DIVIDEND

Based on the performance of the Bank, your Board proposes payment of GHC0.04p per share as 

dividend subject to the approval of Bank of Ghana. Addi�onally, the Bank makes the following 

appropria�on of GhC100,000.00 each to the La Town Development Fund and La Educa�on Fund. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Dis�nguished Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen, beyond banking ac�vi�es, your Bank undertook 

the following corporate social responsibility ac�vi�es in La in the areas of educa�on and health. In 

Community educa�on, your Bank donated educa�onal items to the Nii Amaa Ollennu Memorial 

School to promote e-learning. We also collaborated with the Planned Parenthood Associa�on of 

Ghana [PPAG] to undertake free breast cancer screening for the people of La in October 2024. 

OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2025

Global economic developments in the first four months of the year were characterized by low growth 

prospects, unsynchronized disinfla�on outcomes and restric�ve global financial condi�ons, driven 

largely by significant headwinds associated with the trade policy shi�s in the United States. In the first 

quarter of 2025, provisional data on budget execu�on indicated that although total revenues fell 

below target, expenditure ra�onaliza�on took place to accommodate the revenue shor�all. Broadly, 

the external sector outlook remains favorable, largely anchored on the stabiliza�on of the local 

currency due to expecta�ons of increased gold and cocoa export receipts, as well as inflows from 
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remi�ances. The current level of infla�on remains high rela�ve to the medium-term target and will 

require maintaining the �ght monetary stance to reinforce the disinfla�on process. 

To adapt to these economic condi�ons, the Board believes firmly that when employees see, hear and 

feel the alignment between organiza�onal purpose, strategy, values, culture and leadership 

behaviors. It will have a posi�ve effect on their engagement, performance and consequently our 

success and the interests of our stakeholders. 

Management across the business have adapted well, which is a testament to the spirit and culture 

within the Bank. The safety and wellbeing of our staff, clients remains our main priority. On the issue 

of culture, this subject will con�nue to receive a�en�on during the course of the year. We will 

con�nue to develop an increasingly inclusive culture, building on the opportuni�es that 2024 

provided us to connect, collaborate and grow your value in the Bank.

CONCLUSION

Strong founda�ons have been laid since we began our turnaround strategy and I believe that we have 

focused on the right priori�es as we con�nue to rebuild and strengthen the Bank. I want it to be 

recognized how hard the Board of Directors have worked during the past year and thank them for 

their commitment through difficult �mes. The Board and I feel we have the right balance of skills, 

experience and backgrounds to support and challenge the management team. I would like to thank 

the CEO, his management team and the en�re staff for their con�nued hard work and dedica�on. It is 

gra�fying that we got the Bank back to the era of paying dividends. However, it will be our relentless 

focus on mee�ng customers' needs that will help us to achieve our goals for the long-term success of 

the Bank for the benefit of all our shareholders. Thank you.

Chairman



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are required to ensure that adequate accoun�ng records are maintained so as to 
disclose at reasonable adequacy, the financial posi�on of the Bank. In preparing these 
financial statements, they are required to:

· Select suitable accoun�ng policies and apply them on a consistent basis using reasonable and 
prudent judgement.

· State whether or not the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), the Bank and Specialized Deposit-
Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930) and in accordance with Interna�onal Financial 
Repor�ng Standards ("IFRS") have been adhered to and explain material departures thereto.

· Use the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate.

They are also responsible for steps to safeguard the assets of the Bank and to prevent and detect 
fraud and other irregulari�es. They must present financial statements for each financial year, which 
give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Bank, and the results for that year.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the prepara�on of the annual financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS and the responsibility of external auditors to report on these 
financial statements. The Board is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records and an effec�ve system of internal controls and risk management.

Nothing has come to the Board's a�en�on, to indicate any material breakdown in the func�oning of 
the internal controls and systems during the year under review, which could have a material impact 
on the business.

The financial statements are prepared from the accoun�ng records on the basis of consistent use of 
appropriate records supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and es�mates that fairly 
present the state of affairs of the Bank. The financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis and there is no reason to believe that the Bank will not con�nue as a going concern in 
the next financial year. The Directors confirm that in preparing the financial statements, they have:

· selected suitable accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently.
· made judgements and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent.
· followed the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards.

· prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accoun�ng records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any �me the financial posi�on of the Bank and to enable them ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), the Bank and Specialized Deposit-Taking 
Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930) and in accordance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards 
("IFRS"). They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the preven�on and detec�on of fraud and other irregulari�es.

 

17

By the order of the Board:  



REPORT OF DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
LA COMMUNITY BANK LIMITED

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements for 
the year ended 31st December 2024, which disclose the statement of the affairs of La Community 
Bank Limited (the “Bank”).

Financial results

Detailed financial results for the year are set out in the a�ached audited financial statements with an 
extract as below:

 
2024 2023 

Profit before tax for the year 4,287,589 2,129,057 

from which is deducted:   

Growth & sustainability levy (214,379) (106,452) 

income tax expense (1,129,992) (728,747) 

giving profit a�er tax of 2,943,218 1,293,858 

to which is added balance on retained earnings account brought forward (434,535) (1,216,794) 
Prior year adjustment - (133,310) 

Leaving a balance before statutory and other transfers of 
From which the following transfers were made:  

2,508,683 (56,246) 

Transfer  to statutory reserve (367,902) (161,732) 

Transfer  to La township development fund (100,000) - 

Transfer  to La educa�onal fund (100,000) - 

Other movement of: 
Regulatory credit risk reserve (185,586) (216,557) 

  
1,755,195 

 
(434,535) 

The Directors consider the state of affairs of the Company to be sa�sfactory.   

Dividend

The Board of Directors propose a dividend of GHC 759,777 (0.04 pesewas per share) for the year 
ended 31 December 2024, subject to the approval of the Bank of Ghana and the members of the 
Bank. (2023: Nil).

Directors Interest Register

During the year under review, a company in which a Director of the Bank has an interest had a 
contract with the Bank. In compliance with sec�on 194, 195 and 196 of the Company’s  Act, Act 
2019(992), the interest had been recorded in the interest register.

Auditors

In accordance with Sec�on 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), the Auditors, Messrs. UHY 
Voscon Chartered Accountants, will con�nue in office as the Bank's Auditors.

Auditor's remunera�on

The audit fee payable for the year under review is GHS 60,000, exclusive of Levies and VAT.

18



Stated Capital and Capital Adequacy Ra�o (CAR)
The Stated Capital of the Bank at the end of the repor�ng year was GHS 2,075,305 and deposit for 
shares of GHS 264,620. The Bank met the minimum capital requirement, and the 10% minimum 
capital adequacy ra�o. The Capital Adequacy Ra�o was 12.75%.

Principal ac�vi�es

The principal business of the Bank is to provide banking services.

Appointment, re�rement and re-elec�on of Board Members

The Directors in office at the end of the repor�ng year are as follows:

Board of Directors Posi�on Qualifica�on/Profession Date appointed 

 

Mr.  Seth Nii Sodjah Quao Chairman Chartered Accountant 20/11/2020 

Mr.  David E. A. Oddoye Vice-Chairman Chartered Accountant 29/05/2018 

Dr.  Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe Member Re�red Lecturer/ Consultant 05/06/2014 

Member Banker/ Lawyer 17/01/2022 

Member Banker/ Lawyer 20/12/2022 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei - Aku Member Banker/Sales Consultant 09/10/2023 

Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee Member Chartered Banker/Financial 
Consultant

12/12/2023 

Training and Con�nuous Professional Development (CPD)

During the year, various training to management were undertaken. The Board of Directors availed 
themselves for various trainings to help the Bank in achieving it objec�ves. This helped them to 
con�nually update their skills, their knowledge and familiarity with the Bank's businesses, their 
awareness of the banking sector, risk, regulatory, legal, financial and other developments to enable 
them to fulfil effec�vely their role on the board and to the sub commi�ees.

Corporate Governance Cer�fica�on

During the year, as part of regulatory requirements for director cer�fica�on, modular training 
sessions organised by the Na�onal Banking College were held for the Board on various corporate 
governance topics.

Code of Conduct

La Community Bank Limited has a Code of Conduct policy approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Bank. This addresses areas like complying with local laws and regula�ons, the Bank not offering, 
giving, or accep�ng inappropriate gi�s or benefit to or from third par�es, preven�on of money 
laundering and fraud, avoidance of conflict of interest, openness and honesty with regulators, 
confiden�ality amongst others.

Conflict of interest and compliance

The Bank's Code of Conduct addresses conflicts of interest i.e. actual and poten�al conflict of interest. 
Further, personal conflict of interest and business conflict of interest are addressed by the Code.
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Events a�er repor�ng year

The Directors are not aware of any adjus�ng events a�er the repor�ng year.

Corporate social responsibili�es

During the year under review, dona�ons comprising air condi�oners, ceiling fans, and television sets 
valued at GHC 27,722 were made to the Jus�ce Nii Amaa Ollennu Memorial Basic School. 
Addi�onally, the Bank collaborated with the Planned Parenthood Associa�on of Ghana (PPAG) to 
offer free breast screening services to members of the community.

Related party transac�ons

Related party transac�ons are transac�ons that each counter party has the ability to influence the 
outcome of the transac�on for economic benefits. Related party transac�ons and balances are also 
disclosed in notes to the financial statements. All the Directors except three and some key 
management personnel have interest in shares. A company in which a director has interest also had a 
contract with the Bank within the year under review. No Director has a material interest in any 
contract to which the Bank was a party during the year. Note 31 has disclosures on related party 
transac�ons.

Corporate Governance Compliance Declara�on:

The Board of Directors hereby declare that La Community Bank has complied with the Bank of Ghana 
Corporate Governance Direc�ve for RCBs 2021

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements for the year set out on pages 32 to 73, which have been prepared on a going 
concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

By the order of the Board:  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CG) REPORT

Overview

La Community Bank Limited is commi�ed to strong corporate governance prac�ces that allocate 
rights and responsibili�es among the Bank's Shareholders, the Board and Execu�ve Management to 
provide an effec�ve oversight and management of the Bank in a manner that enhances shareholders' 
value and promotes investors' confidence.

The Bank's corporate governance principles are contained in a number of corporate documents. The 
Board oversees the conduct of the Bank's business and is primarily responsible for providing effec�ve 
governance over the Bank's key affairs, including the appointment of Execu�ve Management, 
approval of business strategies, evalua�on of performance and assessment of major risks facing the 
Bank.
In discharging its obliga�ons, the Board exercises professional judgement in the best interest of the 
Bank and relies on the Bank's Execu�ve Management to implement approved business strategies, 
resolve day-to-day opera�onal issues, keep the Board informed, and maintain and promote high 
ethical standards. The Board delegates authority in management ma�ers to the Bank's Execu�ve 
Management subject to clear instruc�ons in rela�on to such delega�on of authority and the 
circumstances in which Execu�ve Management shall be required to obtain Board approval prior to 
taking a decision on behalf of the Bank.

The Board is the ul�mate decision-making body for all material ma�ers within the Bank. It is 
responsible for providing leadership, se�ng the strategic direc�on of the Bank and monitoring 
management to ensure effec�ve execu�on of such strategy. The Board is responsible for a sound 
system of internal controls and risk management. La Community Bank Limited's commitment to 
ensuring interna�onal best prac�ce in terms of corporate governance remains strong and 
unwavering.

Board composi�on
The Board at all �mes, shall be regulated by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and the Banks and 
Specialized Deposit Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930), no�ces of Bank of Ghana and ARB Apex 
Bank PLC.

The Board for the 2024 repor�ng year was diverse, with a good mix of experience and skills with a 
Board size of seven(7) members. The areas of exper�se of the directors are as follows:

Board of Directors Posi�on Qualifica�on/Profession Date appointed 

Mr.  Seth Nii Sodjah Quao Chairman Chartered Accountant 20/11/2020 

Mr. David E. A. Oddoye Vice Chairman Chartered Accountant 29/05/2018 

Dr.  Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe Member Lecturer/ Consultant 05/06/2014 

Member Banker/ Lawyer 17/01/2022 

Member Banker/ Lawyer 20/12/2022 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei-Aku  Member Banker/Sales Consultant 06/07/2023 

Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee Member 12/12/2023 Chartered Banker/Financial
Consultant
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Re�rement

Dr. Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe re�red during the repor�ng year on 1st August, 2024.

Role of the Chairman/Chairperson and the Chief Execu�ve Officer

The role of the Board Chair and the Chief Execu�ve Officer are kept dis�nct. Except for direc�on and 
guidance on general policy, the Board has delegated the conduct of the day-to-day business to the 
Chief Execu�ve Officer.

Professional development and training ac�vi�es

The Bank has a very comprehensive and tailored induc�on process for new Directors. The induc�on 
process covers the Bank's business opera�ons, the risk and compliance func�ons as well as the legal, 
regulatory and other personal obliga�ons and du�es of a Director of a Bank. Aside the induc�on 
programme, the Bank ensures a con�nuous development programme which is needs-based and is 
designed for individual Directors, commi�ees or for the Board. The Directors are kept updated on all 
regula�ons and laws that are enacted which may affect the opera�ons of the Bank and are also 
advised of the legal, regulatory and other obliga�ons of a Director on an ongoing basis. The Directors 
have access to independent professional advice to enable them to discharge their du�es. The Board 
and its commi�ees are periodically trained in various programmes to enhance their role to the 
strategic direc�on of the Bank.

Frequency of Board mee�ngs and a�endance

There is a process in place to ensure that Directors receive reports in a �mely manner to enable them 
ask appropriate ques�ons and make informed decisions.

Aside formal mee�ngs, the Directors are engaged informally throughout the year. This creates an 
environment that encourages challenge, consulta�on, informa�on sharing, innova�ve thinking and 
openness in communica�on. The Directors are encouraged to interact with the staff and to broaden 
their understanding of the Bank's opera�ons. The following table shows the number of Board 
mee�ngs held during the year and the a�endance by the Directors.

  

Members Board mee�ngs Percentage of attendance (%) Ad hoc mee�ngs 

  
(8)  (1)   

Mr.  Seth Nii Sodjah Quao 8 100 1  

Mr.  David E. A. Oddoye 7 88  1 
 

Dr.  Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe 5 63  -  

8 100 1 

Kennedy Wiafe Effah Esq. 8  1 

8 100 -  Isaac Nsiah Odoi Esq. 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei-Aku  7 88 1 
 

 

Mee�ng a�endance

* Board member re�red on 1/08/2024

Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee

100
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Board Sub-Commi�ees

From the Board Charter, the Board established four (4) Commi�ees to help in the performance of its 
mandate. The Board shall appoint the Chairpersons of the Commi�ee and shall approve appropriate 
terms of reference for the Commi�ee. These sub commi�ees are:
•  Execu�ve Commi�ee
•  Audit, Risk, Compliance and Cybersecurity Commi�ee
•  Credit & Investment Commi�ee
•  Human Resource Commi�ee 

Overview of Board sub-commi�ees 
Execu�ve Commi�ee (EC)
Membership

The commi�ee shall comprise the Board Chair, the Board Vice-Chair and may include at least one 
other vo�ng Board Director. The members during the year under review were Mr. Seth Nii Sodjah 
Quao (Chairman), Mr. David Emmanuel Anang Oddoye. (Vice Chairman) and Mr. Kennedy Wiafe Effah 
who replaced Dr. Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe (Member) following her re�rement.

Du�es

The du�es of the above commi�ee are as follows:

• To the extent permi�ed by law, the Commi�ee shall exercise the powers of the Board during the 
interval periods between Board mee�ngs when the Board is unavailable or unable to meet.

• The Commi�ee shall not have the authority to amend or repeal any Board approved decision or 
take any other ac�on which has been reserved for the full Board or which the Commi�ee is 
otherwise prohibited by law to take.

Audit, Risk, Compliance and Cyber Security Commi�ee 
Membership

The members, including the Chairman of the Commi�ee, shall be appointed by the Board. The 
Commi�ee shall comprise at least three independent non-execu�ve directors of the Bank. The 
members during the year were Mr. David Oddoye (Chairman), Mr. Kennedy Wiafe Effah (member) 
and Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee (member).

Du�es

The du�es of the above commi�ee are as follows:
• Develop strategic goals which set the context for risk management and control ac�vi�es 

throughout the Bank.
• Review the design, completeness and effec�veness of the risk management framework rela�ve 

to the Bank's ac�vi�es.
• Monitor the management of significant risks to the Bank's business objec�ves and sa�sfying itself 

that less significant risks are also being ac�vely managed.
• Review significant breaches, or poten�al breaches of regula�ons and the steps taken to ensure 

that the underlying root causes of any regulatory control failures are being addressed.
• Ensuring that the Bank has in place a designated Compliance func�on which is adequately staffed 

by appropriately trained and competent persons with sufficient authority to perform their role.
• Establish and maintain a culture of compliance awareness and promote the adop�on of 
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Members Mee�ngs(13) Percentage of attendance 
(%) 

Ad hoc mee�ngs 

Mr.  David Oddoye                                                                  12   N/A 

Kennedy Wiafe Effah  Esq.                                                      100                                              N/A 

Mrs Be�y N. A. Aryee*   54  N/A 

13

7

92

appropriate ethical and compliance standards.
• Ensure that both Directors and Staffs are duly trained at least twice per year as required by 

Sec�on 41(1a) of the An�-Money Laundering (Amendment) Act, 2020 (Act 1044).
• Review significant accoun�ng and repor�ng issues, including complex or unusual transac�ons, 

and understand their impact on the financial statement.
• Consider the effec�veness of the Bank's internal control systems, including informa�on 

technology security and control.
• Review with Management and the Head of Internal Audit the internal audit charter, ac�vi�es, 

staffing, and organiza�onal structure of the internal audit func�on.
• Review the effec�veness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regula�ons and 

the results of management's inves�ga�on and follow-up

Frequency of mee�ngs
Mee�ngs shall be held not less than four �mes each year and at such other �mes as required.

*Board member joined the commi�ee on 3/04/2024.

Human Resource Commi�ee (HRC) 
Membership

The Commi�ee shall be composed of a minimum of three directors, as appointed by the Board. The 
members during the period were Dr. (Mrs.) Ma�lda Pappoe (Chairperson), Mr. David Emmanuel 
Anang Oddoye (Member), and Mr. Isaac Odoi (Member). Following the re�rement of Dr. (Mrs.) 
Ma�lda Pappoe, Mr. Isaac Odoi was appointed as Chairperson. Addi�onally, Mrs. Lovelace Adjei Aku 
joined the Commi�ee.

Du�es

The du�es of the above Commi�ee are as follows:
• The Commi�ee shall review and recommend for Board approval the Human Resource Strategy 

including key HR objec�ves, Plans and workforce requirement and monitor its implementa�on.
• Formulate and recommend the succession plan and con�ngency planning for the Chief Execu�ve 

Officer (CEO).
• Recommend which of the top posi�ons below the CEO are cri�cal with respect to the succession 

planning for the senior officers.
• In consulta�on with the CEO, review and recommend for the Board's approval the annual 

compensa�on and benefit for staff.
• Verify on a regular basis, that La Community Bank's compensa�on policies, programs and plans, 

promote the achievement of the Bank's objec�ves and mandate.
• In consulta�on with the Joint Nego�a�ng Commi�ee, review and recommend to the Board the 

annual compensa�on and benefits of staff.
• Regularly review, recommend and monitor La Community Bank policies which provide a sound 

management of the Bank's personnel, in compliance with applicable legisla�on.
• Assess the 'tone at the top' established by the CEO and Senior Management in terms of the 

example that is set with respect to integrity and ethics.
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• The Commi�ee shall review and, if appropriate, recommend to the Board for approval all 
appointments.

Frequency of mee�ngs
The Commi�ee shall meet every quarter in a year.

Human Resource Commi�ee (HRC) – cont.

Members Mee�ngs (6) Percentage of 
a�endance (%) 

Ad hoc mee�ngs 

Dr.  (Mrs.) Ma�lda Pappoe* 2 33.33 N/A 

Mr.  Isaac Odoi 6 100 N/A 

Mr.  David E.A. Oddoye 6 100 N/A 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei-Aku** 2 33.33 N/A 

*Board member re�red on 1/08/2024 
**Board member joined the commi�ee on 6/11/2024 

 

Credit and Investment Commi�ee 

Membership

The Commi�ee shall consist of at least two of the Board of Directors. The membership during the 
year was Kennedy Wiafe Effah Esq. (Chairman), Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee (member), Isaac Nsiah Odoi 
Esq. (member) and Mrs. Lovelace Adjei - Aku (member).

Du�es

The du�es of the above Commi�ee are as follows:

· Facilitate the effec�ve management of credit risk by the bank.

· Review credit risk management policies, underwri�ng guidelines and standard proposals 

on the

recommenda�on of the Management Credit Commi�ee (MCC) for the Board's approval.

· Regularly review credit risk strategies and por�olio quality.

· Review new credit products and processes for the Board's approval

· Review credit authoriza�on limit and make recommenda�on to the Board

· Review proposed changes to this credit policy document on the recommenda�on of 

the Management Credit Commi�ee (MCC) for Board approval.

· May review credit facility requests and proposals for the Board's approval

· Review credit risk reports on a periodic basis

· Review and approve credit facili�es within its limit

· Ensure the Bank has sa�sfactory and system in place for liquidity risk management 

including the iden�fica�on, measurement, mi�ga�on and monitoring of liquidity risk.

· Set liquidity risk tolerable limits to guide management in its opera�ons.

· Ensure Bank has a func�oning and effec�ve Management Informa�on System in 

place to facilitate data management analysis, forecas�ng, tracking and repor�ng 

on liquidity management.

· Approve broad strategies developed to guide the management of broad market and 

business-related risks.
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· Ensure interest rate risk and its caused are iden�fied, measured, mi�gated and monitored.

· Approve the introduc�on of new products and ensure that all uncertain�es 

inherent in new products are outlined and measures put in place to address the 

envisaged uncertain�es.

· Carry out a review of all product features and ensure these are in alignment with Bank 
mission, needs of target market and a review of profitability of the product.

· Ensure periodic review of the measures for mi�ga�ng interest rate risks and confirm 
relevance and con�nuous appropriateness.

Frequency of mee�ngs

The Commi�ee shall meet once in a month and as and when necessary, without unduly exceeding 
mee�ng targets as set by the Board for the year.

Members Mee�ngs (13) Percentage of 
a�endance (%) 

Ad hoc mee�ngs 

Kennedy Wiafe  Effah Esq. 13 100 N/A 

Mrs. Be�y N. A. Aryee* 7 54 N/A 

Isaac Odoi Esq. 12 92 N/A 

Mrs. Lovelace Adjei- Aku 13 

*Board member joined the commi�ee on 15/08/2024. 

100 N/A 

Officers of the Bank

In line with the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), the Bank at the date of this report expressly or 
impliedly authorized officers to act in various capaci�es as below:

Officers                                                                                 Capacity (31st December, 2024) 
 

Peter Vanderpuije 
 

Kenneth Owusu-Twumasi 

Chief Execu�ve Officer 
 

Human Resource & Administra�ve Manager 
 

Deborah Anang  Finance Manager 

Isaac Asante Adentwi Internal Auditor 

Emmanuel Plange Risk and Compliance Manager 
 

 

Benjamin Tamatey 

 

Gifty Winful 

Branch Manager, La

Branch Manager, Teshie

Ag. Branch Manager, Madina

By order of the Board of Directors

Grace Kyereh
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
LA COMMUNITY BANK LIMITED

Report on the audited financial statements 

Opinion

In our opinion, La Community Bank Limited has kept proper accoun�ng records and the financial 
statements are in agreement with the records in all material respects and report in the prescribed 
manner, informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and the Banks and Specialized 
Deposit-Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930). The financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial posi�on of the Bank as at 31 December, 2024, and of its financial performance and 
statement of cash flow for the year then ended and are drawn up in accordance with the 
Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards, issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board 
(IASB).

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the La Community Bank Limited for the 
styear ended 31  December, 2024.

The financial statements comprise:

· statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
st

· statement of financial posi�on as at 31  December, 2024;

· statement of changes in equity for the year ended;

· statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

· the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accoun�ng 
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs). Our 
responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibili�es for the 
audit of the financial statements sec�on of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank within the meaning Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' (IESBA) Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants Ghana (ICAG). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es with IESBA 
Code.

Report on the audited financial statements(con�nued)

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These ma�ers were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers.
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Key Audit Ma�ers                                                     How our audit addressed the key audit ma�er

Loan loss provision                                                   Our procedures included:

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 – Financial 

Instruments, which requires the measurement 

of expected credit loss allowance for financial 

assets at amor�sed cost and fair value through 

other comprehensive income.The Bank reviews 

its loans and advances for impairment at the 

end of each repor�ng period. There are 

significant judgements made in the following 

areas in applying IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments. 

These include;

-Determining the staging of financial assets of 

the Bank which includes establishing groups of 

similar financial assets.-Determining criteria for 

significant increase in credit risk-Determina�on 

of the probability of default (PD) and Loss Given 

Default (LGD), which includes establishing the 

rela�ve weigh�ngs of forward-looking scenarios 

for each type of loan and the associated 

Expected Credit Loss (ECL).Due to the significant 

judgements that are applied by management in 

determining whether an impairment loss has 

occurred we considered this to be a key audit 

ma�er.The Bank is also required to compute 

loan provision in accordance with the Bank of 

Ghana (BOG) pruden�al guidelines. There is the 

risk of inappropriate classifica�on of loans and 

advances in accordance with BOG's guidelines 

that results in inaccurate loan impairment 

computa�ons.

The Bank is also required to make transfers from 

income surplus to regulatory credit risk reserve 

based on the excesses of IFRS impairment and 

Bank of Ghana provision. The disclosures 

rela�ng to impairment of loans and advances to 

customers, which are included in notes to the 

financial statements, are considered important 

to the users of the financial statements given 

the level of judgement and es�ma�on involved.

We evaluated the design and tested the 

implementa�on and opera�ng effec�veness of 

the key controls over the computa�on of 

impairment loss.In evalua�ng the design of 

controls, we considered the appropriateness of 

the control, the nature and significance of the 

risk, competence and authority of person(s) 

performing the control, frequency and 

consistency with which the control  is 

performed.

In performing opera�ng effec�veness of 

controls, we selected a sample of transac�ons 

based on the control frequency to determine 

whether the control operated during the year.

We performed an evalua�on of management's 

key assump�ons over the expected credit loss 

model (ECL), including the probability of default 

and the Loss Given Default.We assessed 

management's staging of its financial assets in 

the ECL module and tested facili�es to ensure 

they have been included in the correct stage.We 

tested the underlying calibra�on data behind 

the determina�on of the probability of default 

by agreeing same to underlying suppor�ng 

documenta�on.

We further assessed as appropriate the 

cassifica�ons of the Bank's loans and advances 

in accordance with Bank of Ghana, pruden�al 

guidelines and the transfer of any excess 

provision over the IFRS computed provisions to 

the regulatory credit Risk Reserve.We found 

that the assump�ons used by management 

were comparable with historical performance 

and have been assessed as reasonable.
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Other Informa�on

The Directors are responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the Report 
of the Directors, including the Board Chairman's statement which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor's report. The other informa�on does not include the financial statements, and our 
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connec�on with our 
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the 
work we have performed on the other informa�on that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's 
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared using the going concern basis of 
accoun�ng. The use of this basis of accoun�ng is appropriate unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Bank or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. As part of our 
audit of the financial statements, we have concluded that management's use of the going concern 
basis of accoun�ng in the prepara�on of the Bank's financial statements is appropriate.
Management has not iden�fied a material uncertainty. However, that may cast significant doubt on 
the Bank's ability to con�nue as a going concern, and accordingly none is disclosed in the financial 
statements of the Bank. Based on our audit of the financial statements of the Bank, we also have not 
iden�fied such a material uncertainty. However, neither management nor the auditor can guarantee 
the Bank's ability to con�nue as going concern.

Responsibili�es of Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of these financial statements 
in accordance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRSs), Companies Act, 2019 (Act 
992), and the Banks and Specialised Deposit Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930). These 
responsibili�es include designing, implemen�ng and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
prepara�on and fair presenta�on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, selec�ng and applying appropriate accoun�ng policies; and making 
accoun�ng es�mates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The Directors are responsible for 
overseeing the Bank's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's responsibili�es for the audit of the financial statements

The objec�ves of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
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professional skep�cism throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from the fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effec�veness of the en�ty's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
and based on the evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists rela�ng to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Bank to cease to 
con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Bank's financial statements represent the underlying 
transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

• We communicate with the Audit Commi�ee among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we iden�fy during our audit.

• We also provide a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the ma�ers communicated with the Audit Commi�ee and the Directors, we determine 
those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current year and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's
report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interests' benefits of such communica�on.
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• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es 
and business ac�vi�es within the Bank to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the Bank audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

Other ma�er paragraph
We have nothing to report on other ma�ers on which we are required to report except by below.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), requires that in carrying out our audit work we consider and 
report on the following ma�ers. We confirm that:
1. We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
2. In our opinion proper accoun�ng records have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from 

our examina�on of those books; and
3. The statement of financial posi�on and statement of comprehensive income of the Bank are 

in agreement with the accoun�ng records.

In accordance with Sec�on 85 (2) of the Banks and Specialized Deposit-Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 
(Act 930), we hereby confirm that:

1. The accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and its results of 
opera�ons for the year under review;

2. We were able to obtain all the informa�on and explana�on required for the efficient 
performance of our du�es as auditors;

3. The Bank's transac�ons were within its powers;
4. In our opinion, the Bank has generally complied with the provisions of the An�-Money 

Laundering Act, 2020 (Act 1044), the An�-Terrorism Act, 2008 (Act 762) and other regula�ons 
enactments and

5. The Bank has generally complied with the provisions in the Banks and Specialized Deposit-
Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930).

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditor's report is Daniel Adewu 
(ICAG/P/1734)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(All amounts are stated in Ghana cedis unless otherwise stated)

 Note 2024 2023 

Interest income 3 15,445,678 11,734,666 
Interest expense 4 (1,332,382) (909,715) 

 
Net interest income 

  
14,113,296 

 
10,824,951 

 
Fees and commission income 

 
5 

 
1,603,891 

 
1,477,371 

Fees and commission expense 6 (385,214) (419,525) 

Net fees and commission income  1,218,677 1,057,846 

 
Other Income 

 
7 

 
24,379 

 
32,790 

 
Opera�ng income 

  
15,356,352 

 
11,915,587 

 
Opera�ng expenses 

   

Impairment loss on financial assets 8 (482,660) (860,598) 

Personnel expenses 9 (6,351,806) (5,460,412) 

Directors’ remunera�on  (357,400) (224,450) 

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on  (270,849) (354,468) 

Finance cost on lease liability 24 (800) (5,418) 
Other opera�ng expenses 10 (3,605,248) (2,881,184) 

 
Total  opera�ng expense 

  
(11,068,763) 

 
(9,786,530) 

 
Profit before Income Tax 

  
4,287,589 

 
2,129,057 

Growth & sustainability levy 11.2 (214,379) (106,452) 
Income tax expense 11.1 (1,129,992) (728,747) 

 
Profit a�er tax a�ributable to equity holders 

  
2,943,218 

 
1,293,858 

 
Other comprehensive income 

   

Movement in fair value reserves  - - 

Total  comprehensive income  2,943,218 1,293,858 

 
Earnings per share: 

   

Basic  15.5 6.81 

Diluted*  15.5 6.81 

 

Statement of comprehensive income  for the year ended 31 December

*There were no compound financial instruments poten�ally conver�ble during the year under review

Notes 1 to 39 on pages 36 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of financial posi�on  as at 31 December 

  
2024 2023 

Assets Notes   

Cash and cash equivalents 12 44,154,812 25,164,356 
Investment securi�es-at amor�sed cost 13 41,775,807 41,013,396 
Investment Securi�es – FVOCI 14 397,491 339,759 
Loans and advances to customers 15 16,433,833 11,092,561 
Other assets 16 1,017,858 952,883 

Current tax asset 11.2 15,079 - 
Deferred tax asset 11.3 2,641,340 2,600,227 
Property,  plant and equipment 17 3,183,939 3,194,099 
Intangible asset 18 146,705 178,041 
Right of use asset 19 669,399 727,566 

Total  assets 

 

110,436,263 85,262,888 

 
Equity 

Stated capital 20 2,075,305 2,075,305 
Deposit for shares 21 264,620 260,620 
Retained earnings  1,755,195 (434,535) 

Revalua�on reserve  243,115 243,115 

Credit risk reserve  579,225 393,639 
Statutory reserve fund  3,235,452 2,867,550

 
Total  equity 

  
8,152,912 

 
5,405,694 

 
Liabili�es 

Customer deposits 22 97,795,206 77,473,876 
Provisions 23 253,953 53,953 
Current Tax Liability 11.2 - 45,431 
Lease liability 24 99,428 98,628 
Dividend payable 25 940,443 942,894 
Other liabili�es 26 3,194,321 1,242,412 

 
Total  liabili�es 

 
 

102,283,351 
 

79,857,194 

 
Total  equity and liabili�es 

 
110,436,263 

 
85,262,888 

Notes 1 to 39 on pages 36 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements. These financial 
statements were approved by the Board and signed on their behalf by:
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Statement of cash flows  for the year ended 31 December

 
 Notes 2024 2023 

Cash generated from/ (used in) opera�ons 27 21,880,024 6,496,553 

Tax paid 11.2 (1,445,994) (750,863) 

Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es 

 

20,434,030 5,745,690 

 
Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es 

   

Acquisi�on of property,  plant and equipment 17.1 (173,774) (77,531) 

Right of use 19.1 - (145,000) 

Investment securi�es 13,14 (1,272,912) (329,868) 

Acquisi�on of intangible assets 18.1 (2,000) - 
Proceeds from sale of property,  plant and equipment  3,563 - 

 
Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es 

  
(1,445,123) 

 
(552,399) 

Financing ac�vi�es 

Proceeds from deposit for shares  4,000 - 
Dividend paid 25 (2,451) (1,098) 

Net Cash flow from financing ac�vi�es 1,549 (1,098) 

 
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 
18,990,456 

 
5,192,193 

Balance at beginning 
 

25,164,356 19,972,163 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 

 
12 

 
44,154,812 

 
25,164,356 

 

 
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

   

Cash on hand  1,186,916 1,177,189 

Bank balances  14,583,947 10,674,219 
Short term investment  28,384,101 13,313,012

  44,154,963 25,164,420 

Allowance for ECL (151) (64)

 

At year end 44,154,812 25,164,356 

Notes 1 to 39 on pages 36 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Repor�ng en�ty

th
La Community Bank Limited was incorporated on 6  November, 1986 under the Companies Act, 1963 
(Act 179), repealed by Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and issued with cer�ficate to commence 

thbusiness on 17  June, 1987.

La Community Bank Limited is domiciled in Ghana with its registered address at G224/1 Lami  Jwahe, 
La, Accra in the Greater Accra Region of Ghana. La Community Bank Limited is regulated under the 
Banks and Specialized Deposit- Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930).

1.1 Principal ac�vity

The nature of business which the bank is authorized to carry out is banking services.

2. Basis of prepara�on

2.1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of La Community Bank Limited have been prepared in accordance with 
Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board 
(IASB) and Interpreta�ons issued by the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Interpreta�ons Commi�ee 
(IFRIC) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and the Banks and 
Specialised Deposit Taking Ins�tu�ons Act, 2016 (Act 930).

2.1.2 Approval of the audited financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on the date signed under the 
financial posi�on.

2.1.3 Basis of presenta�on of the financial statements

The Bank presents it statement of financial posi�on broadly in order of liquidity. Financial assets and 
financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial posi�on only 
when there is a current legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an 
inten�on to se�le on a net basis, or to realize the assets and se�le the liability simultaneously. 
Income and expenses are not offset in profit or loss unless required or permi�ed by any accoun�ng 
standard or interpreta�on, and as specifically disclosed in the accoun�ng policies of the bank.

2.1.4 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on as modified to 
include the fair valua�on of certain financial instruments to the extent required or permi�ed under 
the Bank's accoun�ng policies.
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2.1.5 Func�onal and presenta�on currency

These financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedis (GH¢), which is the Bank's func�onal 
currency.

2.1.6 Use of es�mates and judgements

In the process of applying the Bank's accoun�ng policies, management has exercised judgement and 
es�mates in determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant 
uses of judgement and es�mates are as follows:

2.1.6.1 Going concern

The Bank's management has made an assessment of the Bank's ability to con�nue as going concern 
and is sa�sfied that the Bank has the resources to con�nue in business for the foreseeable future. 
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertain�es that may cast significant doubt 
upon the Bank's ability to con�nue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements con�nue 
to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.1.6.2 Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each repor�ng date to assess 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss. In par�cular, management's 
judgement is required in the es�ma�on of the amount and �ming of future cash flows when 
determining the impairment loss. These es�mates are based on assump�ons about a number of 
factors described in the next paragraph and actual results may differ, resul�ng in future changes to 
the allowance.

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all 
individually insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collec�vely, in groups of assets with 
similar risk characteris�cs, to determine whether the provision should be made due to incurred loss 
events for which there is objec�ve evidence, but the effects of which are not yet evident. The 
collec�ve assessment takes account of data from the loan por�olio (such as levels of arrears, credit 
u�liza�on, loan-to-collateral ra�os, etc.), and judgements on the effect of concentra�ons of risks and 
economic data (including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country risk and the 
performance of different individual groups).

2.1.6.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be u�lized. Judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely �ming and 
level of future taxable profits, together with future tax- planning strategies. Tax losses can be used 
indefinitely.

2.1.6.4 Property, plant and equipment

Cri�cal es�mates are made by Directors in determining deprecia�on rates for property, plant and 
equipment.
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2.2 Summary of significant accoun�ng policies

The accoun�ng policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the Bank.

2.3 Standards, amendments and interpreta�ons
2.3.1 Amendments and New IFRS Accoun�ng Standards that are Effec�ve in 2024

The following new and amended IFRS Accoun�ng Standards, interpreta�ons, and amendments 
issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) are mandatorily effec�ve for annual 
repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er January 1, 2024. Their adop�on has not had any material 
impact on the disclosures or the amounts reported in these financial statements.

2.3.1.1 Amendments to Exis�ng Standards

IAS 1: Presenta�on of Financial Statements – Classifica�on of Liabili�es as Current or Non-current

In January 2020 and October 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 (paragraphs 69 to 76) to 
clarify the classifica�on of liabili�es as current or non-current. These amendments specify:

· The meaning of a right to defer se�lement
· That the right to defer must exist at the repor�ng period's end
· That classifica�on is not influenced by the likelihood of exercising the deferral right
· That the classifica�on of a conver�ble liability is only unaffected if its embedded deriva�ve 

is an equity instrument
Addi�onally, the amendments introduce a new disclosure requirement for liabili�es arising from 
loan agreements classified as non-current, where the en�ty's right to defer se�lement depends on 
compliance with future covenants within the next twelve months
The amendments take effect for annual periods star�ng on or a�er January 1, 2024, with 
retrospec�ve applica�on. The company does not expect these changes to affect its financial 
statements, and the directors an�cipate no material impact from implemen�ng this standard in the 
future.

IAS 1: Presenta�on of Financial Statements – Non-current Liabili�es with Covenants

The amendments clarify that only covenants an en�ty must comply with on or before the repor�ng 
period's end impact its right to defer se�lement of a liability for at least twelve months a�er the 
repor�ng date. These covenants determine whether the en�ty has the right to defer se�lement at 
the repor�ng date, even if compliance is assessed later.
Addi�onally, the IASB states that an en�ty's right to defer se�lement for at least twelve months a�er 
the repor�ng date remains unaffected if compliance with a covenant is only required a�er the 
repor�ng period. However, if the right to defer se�lement depends on compliance with covenants 
within twelve months a�er the repor�ng date, the en�ty must disclose relevant informa�on to help 
users understand the risk of liabili�es becoming repayable within that period. This includes:

· Details of the covenants, such as their nature and compliance deadlines
· The carrying amount of related liabili�es
· Any circumstances that may indicate poten�al challenges in mee�ng the covenants

The amendments are effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er January 1, 2024, with 
retrospec�ve applica�on, and early adop�on is permi�ed. The company's directors do not expect 
these amendments to have a material impact on the company's financial statements.
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IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures—Supplier Finance 
Arrangements

The amendments introduce a disclosure objec�ve in IAS 7, requiring en��es to provide informa�on 
on supplier finance arrangements to help users assess their impact on liabili�es and cash flows. 
Addi�onally, IFRS 7 has been updated to include supplier finance arrangements as an example under 
the disclosure requirements for liquidity risk concentra�on.
Rather than defining supplier finance arrangements, the amendments describe the key 
characteris�cs of such agreements that require disclosure. To meet the disclosure objec�ve, en��es 
must disclose, in aggregate, the following details related to their supplier finance arrangements:

· Terms and condi�ons of the arrangements.
· Carrying amount of liabili�es included in these arrangements and their respec�ve line 

items in the statement of financial posi�on.
· Amounts already paid to suppliers by finance providers and their associated line items.
· Payment due date ranges for both liabili�es under supplier finance arrangements and 

comparable trade payables that are not part of such arrangements.
· Liquidity risk informa�on related to these arrangements.

The amendments include specific transi�on reliefs for the first annual repor�ng period in which they 
are applied. They take effect for annual periods beginning on or a�er January 1, 2024, with early 
adop�on permi�ed. The company's directors do not expect these amendments to have a material 
impact on the company's financial statements.

IFRS 16: Leases – Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback Transac�on

The amendments to IFRS 16 introduce requirements for the subsequent measurement of sale and 
leaseback transac�ons that qualify as a sale under IFRS 15. They specify that the seller-lessee must 
determine lease payments or revised lease payments in a way that prevents recogni�on of a gain or 
loss related to the right-of-use asset retained a�er the lease begins.
These amendments do not impact the gain or loss recognized due to the par�al or full termina�on of 
a lease. Previously, a seller-lessee might have recognized a gain on the retained right-of-use asset 
solely due to a remeasurement of the lease liability, such as a lease modifica�on or change in lease 
term, under the general IFRS 16 requirements. This issue was par�cularly relevant for leasebacks 
involving variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.
As part of the changes, the IASB updated an Illustra�ve Example in IFRS 16 and introduced a new 
example to demonstrate how to measure the right-of-use asset and lease liability in sale and 
leaseback transac�ons involving variable lease payments. The examples also clarify that a liability 
arising from a qualifying sale and leaseback transac�on under IFRS 15 is classified as a lease liability.
The amendments apply to annual periods beginning on or a�er January 1, 2024, with early adop�on 
permi�ed. If applied early, an en�ty must disclose this fact. The company's directors do not expect 
these amendments to have a material impact on the company's financial statements.

2.3.1.2 New IFRS Accoun�ng Standards

IFRS S1: General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Informa�on

The objec�ve of IFRS S1 is to require an en�ty to disclose informa�on about its sustainability-related 
risks and opportuni�es that is useful to users of general purpose financial reports in making decisions 
rela�ng to providing resources to the en�ty. IFRS S1 requires an en�ty to disclose informa�on about 
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all sustainability-related risks and opportuni�es that could reasonably be expected to affect the 
en�ty's cash flows, its access to finance or cost of capital over the short, medium or long term 
(collec�vely referred to as 'sustainability-related risks and opportuni�es that could reasonably be 
expected to affect the en�ty's prospects').
IFRS S1 prescribes how an en�ty prepares and reports its sustainability-related financial disclosures. 
It sets out general requirements for the content and presenta�on of those disclosures so that the 
informa�on disclosed is useful to users in making decisions rela�ng to providing resources to the 
en�ty.
IFRS S1 sets out the requirements for disclosing informa�on about an en�ty's sustainability-related 
risks and opportuni�es. In par�cular, an en�ty is required to provide disclosures about:

· the governance processes, controls and procedures the en�ty uses to monitor, manage 
and oversee sustainability-related risks and opportuni�es;

· the en�ty's strategy for managing sustainability-related risks and opportuni�es;
· the processes the en�ty uses to iden�fy, assess, priori�se and monitor sustainability-

related risks and opportuni�es; and
· the en�ty's performance in rela�on to sustainability-related risks and opportuni�es, 

including progress towards any targets the en�ty has set or is required to meet by law or 
regula�on.

IFRS S1 is effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2024 with earlier 
applica�on permi�ed as long as IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures is also applied.

IFRS S2: Climate-related Disclosures

The objec�ve of IFRS S2 is to require an en�ty to disclose informa�on about its climate-related risks 
and opportuni�es that is useful to users of general-purpose financial reports in making decisions 
rela�ng to providing resources to the en�ty. IFRS S2 requires an en�ty to disclose informa�on about 
climate-related risks and opportuni�es that could reasonably be expected to affect the en�ty's cash 
flows, its access to finance or cost of capital over the short, medium or long term (collec�vely referred 
to as 'climate-related risks and opportuni�es that could reasonably be expected to affect the en�ty's 
prospects').
IFRS S2 applies to:

a. climate-related risks to which the en�ty is exposed, which are:
i. climate-related physical risks; and
ii. climate-related transi�on risks; and

b. climate-related opportuni�es available to the en�ty.
IFRS S2 sets out the requirements for disclosing informa�on about an en�ty's climate-related risks 
and opportuni�es. In par�cular, IFRS S2 requires an en�ty to disclose informa�on that enables users 
of general purpose financial reports to understand:

· the governance processes, controls and procedures the en�ty uses to monitor, manage 
and oversee climate- related risks and opportuni�es;

· the en�ty's strategy for managing climate-related risks and opportuni�es;
· the processes the en�ty uses to iden�fy, assess, priori�se and monitor climate-related 

risks and opportuni�es, including whether and how those processes are integrated into 
and inform the en�ty's overall risk management process; and

· the en�ty's performance in rela�on to its climate-related risks and opportuni�es, 
including progress towards any climate-related targets it has set, and any targets it is 
required to meet by law or regula�on.

IFRS S2 is effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2024 with earlier 
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applica�on permi�ed as long as IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-
related Financial Informa�on is also applied.

2.3.2 New IFRS Accoun�ng Standards in issue but not yet effec�ve IFRS 18: Presenta�on and 
Disclosure in Financial Statement
The Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) on April 9, 2024, for the annual repor�ng 
period beginning on January 1, 2027. IFRS 18 supersedes IAS 1: Presenta�on of Financial Statements 
and introduces significant changes to the structure, presenta�on, and disclosure requirements of 
financial statements. The standard aims to enhance the transparency, comparability, and usefulness 
of financial informa�on for users.

Key Provisions of IFRS 18
IFRS 18 introduces several significant changes to the presenta�on and disclosure of financial 
statements. The key provisions include:

Statement of Profit  or Loss New Subtotals
IFRS 18 introduces defined subtotals, such as Opera�ng Profit, to provide a consistent measure of 
the Group's core
business performance. This ensures that users can easily iden�fy and compare opera�ng results 
across en��es.

Categories of Income and Expenses
Income and expenses are now classified into five dis�nct categories:

· Opera�ng: Ac�vi�es related to the Group's core business opera�ons.
· Inves�ng: Ac�vi�es related to the acquisi�on and disposal of long-term assets.
· Financing: Ac�vi�es related to raising and repaying capital.
· Income Taxes: Tax expenses and benefits.
· Discon�nued Opera�ons: Results of opera�ons that have been or will be discon�nued.

Management-Defined Performance Measures (MPMs) Disclosure Requirements
En��es are required to disclose Management-Defined Performance Measures (MPMs) used in 
public communica�ons, ensuring transparency about measures not defined by IFRS but relevant to 
users

.
Aggrega�on and  Disaggrega�on 
Enhanced Guidance
IFRS 18 provides strengthened principles for determining when items should be aggregated or 
disaggregated in financial statements. This ensures that material informa�on is neither obscured by 
excessive aggrega�on nor fragmented by unnecessary disaggrega�on.

Materiality Considera�ons
The Group has applied materiality considera�ons when presen�ng financial informa�on, ensuring 
that key financial metrics are clearly iden�fiable.

Statement of Cash Flows 
Classifica�on of Cash Flows
IFRS 18 clarifies the classifica�on of interest and dividend cash flows in the statement of cash flows. 
This enhances consistency in repor�ng and ensures that users can be�er understand the sources and 
uses of cash.
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Implementa�on Considera�ons
· Retrospec�ve Applica�on: En��es are required to apply IFRS 18 retrospec�vely, resta�ng 

compara�ve informa�on for prior periods.
· System and Process Updates: Companies may need to update financial repor�ng systems 

and processes to comply with the new presenta�on and disclosure requirements.
· Stakeholder Communica�on: Proac�ve communica�on with investors and other 

stakeholders is essen�al to explain the impacts of the new standard on financial 
statements.

The amendments apply to the Company and will be fully implemented when they become effec�ve.

2.4 Revenue, interest income, fees and commission income and dividend income

2.4.1 Revenue recogni�on

The Bank recognizes revenue in the financial statements on the accrual basis when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the 
en�ty and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Bank's ac�vi�es. The Bank bases its 
es�mates on historical results, taking into considera�on the type of customer, the type of transac�on 
and the specifics of each arrangement.

2.4.1.1 Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from loans and advances and other financial instruments 
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss using the effec�ve interest method.

The effec�ve interest method is a method of calcula�ng the amor�zed cost of a financial asset. The 
effec�ve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts es�mated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter year to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calcula�ng the effec�ve interest rate, the Bank 
es�mates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment op�ons) but does not consider future credit losses. The calcula�on includes all fees and 
points paid or received between par�es to the contract that are an integral part of the effec�ve 
interest rate, transac�on costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been wri�en down as a result of an 
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future 
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The recogni�on of interest income 
ceases when the payment of interest or principal is in doubt. Interest is included in income therea�er 
only when it is received. Loans are re-evaluated on the accrual basis only when doubts about their 
collectability are removed and when the outstanding arrears of interest and principal are received.

2.4.1.2 Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service is provided. 
Commission and fees arising from nego�a�on or par�cipa�on in the nego�a�on of a transac�on 
such as the arrangement for a loan are recognized upon comple�on of the underlying transac�on. 
The Bank earns commissions and fees from a range of services provided to its customers. Income 
earned on customer's current account (commission on turnover) is recognized when the services are 
provided.
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Commissions and facility fees are credited to income when earned with reasonable certainty and in 
the case of facility fees, in the year in which the related loan is granted.

2.4.1.3 Dividend income

Dividend income on shares held by the Bank are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in 
'dividend income' when the Bank's right to receive payment is established. Addi�onal income taxes 
that arise from the distribu�on of dividends are recognized at the same �me as the liability to pay the 
related dividend is recognized.

2.5 Interest expense

Interest expense is recognized in the profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial instruments 
measured at amor�zed cost, this include savings and fixed term deposit using the effec�ve interest 
rate method.

The effec�ve interest rate method is a method of calcula�ng the amor�zed cost of a financial liability 
and of alloca�ng the interest expenses. The effec�ve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
the es�mated future cash payments over the expected life of the instrument or where appropriate, a 
shorter year to the net carrying amount of the financial liability

The effec�ve interest rate is calculated on ini�al recogni�on of the financial liability, es�ma�ng the 
future cash flows a�er considering all the contractual terms of the instrument.

2.6 Administra�on, general and other opera�ng expenses

These expenses are recognized when incurred not when paid.

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with ARB 
Apex Bank Limited and highly liquid financial assets with original maturi�es of less than three 
months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank 
in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at 
amor�zed cost or fair values in the statement of financial posi�on depending on the business model 
for managing the asset or the cash flow characteris�cs of the asset.

2.8 Financial assets and liabili�es

2.8.1 Date of recogni�on

The Bank ini�ally recognizes financial assets and financial liabili�es on the trade date. i.e., the date 
that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

2.8.2 Ini�al measurement of financial instruments

The classifica�on of financial instruments at the ini�al recogni�on depends on the purpose and 
management's inten�on for which the financial instruments were acquired and their characteris�cs.
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All financial instruments are measured ini�ally at their fair value plus transac�on costs, except in the 
case of financial assets and financial liabili�es recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

2.8.2.1 Financial assets or financial liabili�es held for trading

Financial assets or financial liabili�es held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial 
posi�on at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net interest income.

The Bank has not designated any financial instrument as held for trading.

2.8.2.2 Financial assets or financial liabili�es designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabili�es classified in this category are those that have been designated 
by management on ini�al recogni�on. Management may only designate an instrument at fair 
through profit or loss upon ini�al recogni�on when the following criteria are met, and designa�on is 
determined on an instrument basis.

The designa�on eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the assets or liabili�es or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different 
basis.
The assets and liabili�es are part of the bank's financial assets, financial liabili�es, or both which are 
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented 
risk management or investment strategy.

The financial instrument contains one or more embedded deriva�ves which significantly modify the 
cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the 
statement of financial posi�on at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss. The 
Bank has not designated any financial instrument as fair value through profit or loss.

2.8.2.3 Held to maturity financial instruments

Held to maturity financial investments are non-deriva�ve financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturi�es, which the Bank has the inten�on and ability to hold to maturity.

A�er ini�al measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at 
amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest rate method (EIR), less impairment.

Amor�zed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The amor�za�on is included in interest and similar income in 
profit or loss. If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held to 
maturity investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the en�re 
category would be tainted and would be reclassified as available for sale.

Furthermore, the Bank would be prohibited from classifying any financial asset as held to maturity 
during the following two years.
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2.8.2.4 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers includes loans and advances to customers originated by the Bank 
which are not classified as held for trading or designated at fair value. Loans and advances are 
recognized when cash is advanced to the borrower. They are derecognized either when the borrower 
repays their obliga�ons or are wri�en off.
They are ini�ally recognized at fair value plus and any directly a�ributable transac�on cost and are 
subsequently measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest rate method less impairment 
loss.

2.9 Framework for impairment of financial assets

At each repor�ng date, the Bank assesses whether, as a result of one or more events (loss event) 
occurring a�er ini�al recogni�on, there is objec�ve evidence that financial assets or group of 
financial assets has become impaired.

Evidence of impairment may include indica�ons that the borrower or group of borrower or group of 
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments, or the fact that the debt is being restructured to reduce the burden on the 
borrower.

2.9.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Bank makes an allowance for unrecoverable loans and receivables, held to maturity investments 
and available for sale financial assets when there is an objec�ve evidence that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. Significant management judgement is required to determine when 
objec�ve evidence of impairment exists, and also in es�ma�ng future cash flows from the assets.

2.9.2 Impairment of financial assets carried at amor�zed cost

For financial assets carried at amor�zed cost, the Bank first assesses individually whether objec�ve 
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collec�vely for 
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objec�ve 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a 
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteris�cs and collec�vely assesses them for 
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 
is, or con�nues to be, recognized are not included in a collec�ve assessment of impairment.

If there is objec�ve evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of es�mated 
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of 
the loss is recognized in the profit or loss.

Interest income con�nues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the 
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss.
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The interest income is recorded as part of 'Interest and similar income. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are wri�en off when there is no realis�c prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount 
of the es�mated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring a�er the 
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by 
adjus�ng the allowance account. If a future write–off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to 
the 'Credit loss expense'

2.9.3 Impairment of available for sale investments

If there is objec�ve evidence that the cost may not be recovered, an available-for-sale equity security 
is considered to be impaired.
Objec�ve evidence that the cost may not be recovered, in addi�on to qualita�ve impairment criteria, 
includes a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost

If an available-for-sale equity security is impaired based upon the Bank's qualita�ve or quan�ta�ve 
impairment criteria, any further declines in the fair value at subsequent repor�ng dates are 
recognized as impairments. Therefore, at each repor�ng period, for an equity security that is 
determined to be impaired based upon the Bank's impairment criteria, an impairment is recognized 
for the difference between the fair value and the original cost basis, less any previously recognized 
impairments.

2.9.4 Impairments of assets and other non-financial assets

The Bank assesses at each end of the repor�ng year whether there is any indica�on that an asset  may 
be impaired. If any such indica�on exists, that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is 
es�mated for the individual asset. If it is possible to es�mate the recoverable amount of the 
individual asset, the recoverable amount of the Cash-Genera�ng Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs is determined. The recoverable amount of a cash genera�ng unit is the higher of its fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduc�on is an 
impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less than any accumulated deprecia�on or amor�za�on 
is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a 
downward revalua�on.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated deprecia�on or 
amor�za�on other than goodwill is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an 
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as an upward revalua�on.

2.10 De-recogni�on of financial assets

2.10.1 Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
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The Bank has transferred it rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obliga�on to 
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 'pass through' 
arrangement; and either the Bank has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the assets, 
or the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 'pass 
through' arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and 
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the 
Bank's con�nuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Bank also recognizes an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obliga�ons that the Bank has retained.
Con�nuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considera�on 
that the Bank could be required to repay.

2.10.2 Financial liabili�es

Financial liabili�es include customer deposits, other liabili�es and interest payable. They are 
derecognized when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substan�ally 
different terms, or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an exchange or 
modifica�on is treated as a de- recogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on of a new 
liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the considera�on paid 
is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Bank enters into transac�ons whereby it transfers assets recognized on its statement of financial 
posi�on, but retains all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a por�on of them. If all or 
substan�ally all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized from 
the statement of financial posi�on. Transfers of assets with reten�on of all or substan�ally all risks 
and rewards include, for example, securi�es lending and repurchase transac�ons.

2.11 Offse�ng

Financial assets and liabili�es are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
posi�on when, and only when, the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the asset and se�le the liability 
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permi�ed by the accoun�ng standards, 
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transac�ons such as in the Bank's trading 
ac�vity.

2.12 Renego�ated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This 
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may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan condi�ons. Once 
the terms have been renego�ated any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated 
before the modifica�on of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management 
con�nually reviews renego�ated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments 
are likely to occur. The loans con�nue to be subject to an individual or collec�ve impairment 
assessment, calculated using the loan's original effec�ve interest rate.

2.13 Fair value measurement

The Bank measures financial instruments, such as, available for sale financial assets at fair value. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presump�on that the transac�on to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either:

· In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Bank. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assump�ons that market par�cipants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market par�cipants act in their economic best interest. A 
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market par�cipant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market par�cipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Bank uses valua�on 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

2.14 Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognized in equity.

2.14.1 Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substan�vely enacted at the statement of financial posi�on date, and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous years.

2.14.2 Deferred tax expense

Deferred tax is provided using temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili�es for financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for taxa�on purposes. Deferred tax 
is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill, the 
ini�al recogni�on of assets or liabili�es in a transac�on that is not a business combina�on and that 
affects neither accoun�ng nor taxable profit, and differences rela�ng to investments in subsidiaries 
to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, 
based on the laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the repor�ng date.
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A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the asset can be u�lized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realized.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has:

· a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past event,
· and it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to se�le the obliga�on,
· And a reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure to be required to se�le the 
obliga�on. Where some or all of the expenditure required to se�le a provision is expected to be 
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is 
virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received if the en�ty se�les the obliga�on. The 
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the reimbursement 
shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognized for future opera�ng losses. If an en�ty has a contract that is onerous, 
the present obliga�on under the contract shall be recognized and measured as a provision. 
Con�ngent assets and con�ngent liabili�es are not recognized in the financial statements. 
Con�ngencies are disclosed in the notes to these financial statements if the probability of the 
required cash inflow to be received or cash ou�low to discharge the obliga�on is possible.

2.15.1 Provision for restructuring/reorganiza�on

A restructuring or reorganiza�on is a programme that is planned and controlled by management 
which will materially change the scope and manner in which the business is conducted e.g. the 
termina�on or sale of business. A provision for restructuring can only be recognized if there is a 
construc�ve obliga�on which is established if the following condi�ons are met:

·      There is a detailed formal plan that iden�fies the part of the business, loca�on and employees 
who will be affected by the restructuring

·      A valid expecta�on has been created to those who will be affected by the restructuring. Provision 
for restructuring is made if a construc�ve obliga�on exists before the end of the financial year. 
However, if the construc�ve obliga�on arises a�er year end, and the provision is material, the 
material effect is disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with IAS 10.

Restructuring provision cost include direct expenditures that will be incurred because of the 
restructuring and excludes any cost associated with ongoing ac�vity of the en�ty. E.g. training of staff, 
reloca�on of staff, marke�ng and investment in new machinery

2.16 Employee benefits

2.16.1 Short term employment benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months a�er the service is 
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rendered, such as paid vaca�on leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care) are recognized in the year in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

2.16.2 Leave benefits

Annual leave is provided in the period that the leave accrued and outstanding leave is not converted 
to cash and no provision is made and recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognized as an expense when there is a 
legal or construc�ve obliga�on to make such payments as result of past performance.

2.16.3 Social security contribu�ons

A defined contribu�on plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contribu�ons into a 
separate en�ty. The Bank contributes to the defined contribu�on schemes (the Social Security Fund) 
on behalf of employees. This is a na�onal pension scheme under which the Bank pays 13% of 
qualifying employees' basic monthly salaries to a state managed Social Security Fund for the benefit 
of the employees.
The Bank has no legal or construc�ve obliga�ons to pay further contribu�ons if the fund does hold 
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits rela�ng to employee service in the current and 
prior years.
Payments to defined contribu�on re�rement benefits plans are charged as an expense as they fall 
due.

2.16.4 Other employee  benefits - Provident fund

The Bank has a provident fund scheme for all permanent employees with the Bank. Bank contributes 
2% of the basic salary. Obliga�ons under the scheme are limited to the relevant contribu�ons made 
and any related investment income generated.

2.16.5 Re�rement benefits

Re�rement benefits shall be determined by the Board or as provided under the Banks Condi�ons of 
Service and also the rule governing the opera�on of the provident fund scheme.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are ini�ally measured at cost. Cost of inventories are measured using the weighted 
average method. Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value.

Net realizable value is the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the es�mated 
costs of comple�on and the es�mated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present loca�on and condi�on. The inventories are sta�oneries and 
other consumables of the Bank.
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2.18 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an en�ty a�er 
deduc�ng all of its liabili�es. Ordinary shares are classified as part of equity.

2.19 Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost deals with the capitaliza�on of interest cost and funds used in the construc�on, 
produc�on and acquisi�on of a qualifying asset. IAS 23 allows borrowing cost to be capitalized if it 
relates to the produc�on of a qualifying asset. Qualifying asset that takes a substan�al year of �me to 
get the asset ready for it intended use or eventual sale. A qualifying asset can be tangible or intangible 
asset. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (finance lease charges, exchange differences) that 
an en�ty incurs in connec�on with the borrowing of funds. The following condi�ons must be met 
before the capitaliza�on of borrowing cost;

• The borrowing cost capitalized should relate to the cost incurred on the project.

• The borrowing cost capitalized cannot exceed the total cost for the year

• Borrowing cost capitalized should commence when the expenditure on the project is being 
incurred and undertakes ac�vity necessary to prepare the asset for it use or eventual sale which is 
not necessary from the date the funds are borrowed. The ac�vi�es necessary to prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale encompass more than the physical construc�on of the asset.

• They include technical and administra�ve work prior to the commencement of physical 
construc�on, such as the ac�vi�es associated with obtaining permits prior to the 
commencement of the physical construc�on

• Borrowing cost capitalized should cease when the asset is ready for its intended use or eventual 
sale.

• Borrowing cost capitalized should be suspended in the year of inac�vity or no ac�ve development 
of the qualifying asset.

Borrowing cost does not apply to inventories manufactured on large quan��es on a repe��ve basis. 
Borrowing costs that do not meet the capitaliza�on criteria must be expensed into the income 
statement. Borrowing costs cannot be capitalized for assets measured at fair value. The interest rate 
for the borrowing cost is the effec�ve rate which incorporates amor�za�on for discounts, premium 
and other expenses like issue costs. Any investment income from the temporal investment of the 
funds for the construc�on or purchase of the qualifying assets during the construc�on year should be 
net against the borrowing cost eligible to be capitalized.

Any investment income during year of inac�vity in the construc�on year will be credited to the 
income statement separately. Any investment income outside the construc�on year will be credited 
to the income statement separately.

2.20 Related par�es

Related par�es are individuals and companies, where the individual and the Bank have the ability 
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence on the other party in 
making financial and opera�ng decisions. Related party transac�ons and balances are disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements.
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2.21 Property, plant and equipment

The Bank recognizes an item of property, plant and equipment as an asset when it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to it, the amount meets the materiality threshold set by the Bank, 
and can be reliably measured.
All property, plant and equipment are ini�ally stated at cost. Cost includes amount incurred ini�ally 
to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and expenditure that is directly 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of the asset.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss 
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Deprecia�on of other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate their cost to their residual values over their es�mated useful lives, as follows:

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each repor�ng year. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Class of asset                                                                                                         Es�mated useful life

Computers and accessories                                                                                                3-4years  

Motor vehicles                                                                                                                         4 years 
Furniture, fi�ngs and equipment                                                                                                                      3-10 years 

                                                                                                                       Leasehold improvement                                                                                                                5 years

Building           25-50 years

An asset's carrying amount is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's 
carrying amount is greater than its es�mated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. No property and equipment were 
impaired as at 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These 
are included in the income statement.

2.22 Intangible assets

So�ware
So�ware acquired by the Bank is stated at cost less accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated 
impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on so�ware assets is capitalized only when it increases 
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure 
is expensed as incurred.
Amor�za�on is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line over the 
es�mated useful life of the so�ware, from the date that it is available for use. The es�mated useful life 
of so�ware is between 3 to 5 years.
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2.23 Lease

The Bank considers a contract as a lease when it (contract) conveys the right to use an asset (the 
underlying assets) for a period of �me in exchange for considera�on. This policy covers all 
arrangement that meet the defini�on of lease, effec�ve from 1 January, 2019.

2.24.1 Ini�al recogni�on

At the incep�on date, the Bank recognises a Right-of-Use Assets and a corresponding Lease Liability 
unless the lessee makes use of op�onal exemp�ons for short-term leases (12 months or less) and 
leases for which the underlying assets is of low value.

The Right-of-use assets is ini�ally recognised at cost comprising the amount of lease liability 
recognised adjusted with any lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any 
lease incen�ves, plus ini�al direct cost incurred and an es�mate of cost to be incurred to dismantle or 
remove an asset and restore the branch and office premises based on the terms of the Lease.

The Bank recognizes the lease liability for the unpaid por�on of payment discounted at the rate 
implicit in the lease or, if this is not readily determinable, the incremental rate of borrowing.

2.24.2 Subsequent measurement

The Right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated deprecia�on on a straight-
line basis from the commencement date to the end of the lease term unless the ini�al recogni�on 
considers the exercise of a purchase op�on or the lessor transfers the ownership of the underlying 
asset to the Bank by the end of the lease term.

Lease liability is subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest method. The 
Bank remeasures the lease liability to reflect changes in the lease payments. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in the original assessment of the lease term, a change in the es�mate of residual 
guarantee or change in rate affec�ng payments or a change in the fixed lease payment.

2.24    Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit a�er tax for the year a�ributable to 
equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year.

2.25 Regulatory disclosure  
 

2024 

 
 

2023 

 

Gross  loans  –  GHC  17,076,898 11,705,672 

Performing  loans  –  GHC  16,370,668 10,978,818 

Non-performing  loans  –  GHC  706,230 726,854 

Non-performing  loan  ra�o  (NPL  %) 4.14 6.20 

Loan  loss  provision  ra�o  (%)  4.85 7.09 

Ra�o  of  20  largest  exposures  to  total  credit (%) 42.77 41.90 

Capital  Adequacy  Ra�o  (CAR  %)  12.75 12.23 
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Loans 4,408,547 3,374,975 
Overdra� 493,878 165,160 
Interest on investments (Fixed deposit and Gov’t securi�es) 10,543,253 8,194,531 

 

15,445,678 11,734,666 

Fixed deposit 1,082,177 648,980 
Savings account 250,205 260,735 

 

1,332,382 909,715 

Brokerage fees 569,266 562,233 
Clearing fees 22,107 32,145 
Commission on turnover 337,389 342,087 
Dra� and transfers 1,015 3,995 
Money transfers 55,058 54,785 
Handling charges 244,117 168,400 
Other fees and commission 374,939 313,726 

  
1,603,891 

 
1,477,371 

 
  Mobile Banker’s Commission* 385,214 419,525 

  
385,214 

 
419,525 

This represents Commission payments to Mobile Bankers     

 

3.  Interest income  2024 2023 

 
4.  Interest expense 

 
2024 

 
2023 

 
5. Fees and  commission income  

 
2024 2023 

 
 

6.  Fees and  commission expense 2024 2023 

Interest on clearing accounts 6,639 5,282 
Capital grant income - 2,502 
Bad debt recovery - 8,000 
Others 17,740 17,006 

 

24,379 32,790 

7.  Other income 2024 2023 
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8.  Impairment  loss on financial assets 

 

 
2024 

 

 
2023 

Loans and advances to customers 29,955 302,565 

Investment security* 452,705 558,033 
  

482,660 
 

860,598 

*This is the impairment of DDEP bonds over a four-year period which commenced in 2023. 
The balance of GHC 1,221,823 remains to be wri�en off. 

 

Salaries, wages and allowances 4,706,032 4,248,340 
 

Employer’s SSNIT contribu�on 376,560 339,550  

Employer’s provident fund contribu�on 57,798 51,948  

Medical Cost 137,533 152,227  

Other staff Cost 714,120 668,347  
  

6,351,806 
 

5,460,412 

 

 

 

9.  Personnel  expenses 

 

2024 

 

2023 

 

Adver�sing and marke�ng 93,670 46,960 

Professional fees 47,518 5,936 

Auditor's remunera�on 73,140 60,950 

Audit expense 3,188 1,180 

Dona�ons 42,722 19,500 

Subscrip�ons/periodicals 301,196 186,663 

Rent and rates 16,435 12,512 

Sta�onery and prin�ng 199,705 151,172 

Bank charges 70,155 60,203 

Training 106,794 31,106 

Insurance 329,501 284,966 

Travelling 78,577 41,670 

Repair and maintenance 946,435 852,379 

Mee�ngs 173,257 95,799 

U�li�es 353,615 379,964 

Cleaning & sanita�on 80,741 71,638 

Security 196,132 138,376 

Internet 130,553 130,963 

Specie movement 85,793 39,526 

Office expense 30,539 33,995 

Registrar’s fees 12,919 11,980 

Lease charges on equipment 50,457 45,081 

USSD transac�onal fees 175,887 

Write-off - 1,669 

Collateral registry expense 5,295 - 

Loss on disposal 1,024 - 

  
3,605,248 

 
2,881,184 

10.  Other Opera�ng expenses 2024 2023 
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11. Taxa�on 
11.1 Income tax expenses  

 
2024 

 
2023 

Current tax expense 1,171,105 738,295 
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (41,113) (9,548) 

1,129,992 728,747 

 

Year of assessment Balance at 
01/01/2024 

Adjustment Payment Charge for 
the year 

Balance at 
31/12/2024 

2021 (15,794) - - - (15,794) 

2022 (32,658) - - - (32,658) 

2023 112,431 - (63,979)  48,452 

2024   (1,177,015) 1,171,105 (5,910) 

 63,979  (1,240,994) 1,171,105 (5,910) 

   

2023 (18,548) - 
  

(18,548) 

2024   (205,000) 214,379 9,379 
 (18,548) - (205,000) 214,379 (9,169) 
      

Total 45,431 - - (1,445,994) 1,385,484 (15,079) 

The above tax posi�on is subject to the agreement of the Domes�c Tax Division of the Ghana Revenue Authority.

Growth and sustainability levy is 5% of profit before tax in accordance with the Growth and Sustainability Act, 2023 
(Act 1095)

2024 2023 

Balance at year start 2,600,227 2,590,679 
Charge to income statement (43,113) (9,548)

 
Balance at December 

 
2,641,340 

 
2,600,227 

Profit before taxa�on 4,287,589 2,129,057 

Tax at applicable rate (25%) 1,071,897 532,264 

Add (Deduct):   

Tax effect of non-deduc�ble expenses 217,845 318,276 

Tax effect of capital allowances (118,637) (112,245) 

Growth & sustainability levy 214,379 106,452 

Tax effect of origina�on and reversal of temporary difference (41,113) (9,548) 

 
Tax expense 

 
1,344,372 

 
835,199 

 
Effec�ve tax rate 

 
31.35% 

 
39.23% 

11.2 Current tax 

Growth and sustainability levy 
  

11.3 Deferred tax 

Reconcilia�on of tax expense to product of accoun�ng profit and 
applicable rate 

2024 2023 
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12.  Cash and cash equivalents 2024 2023 

Cash on hand 1,186,916 1,177,189 

Balance with other local banks 2,168,963 1,760,512 

Balance with ARB Apex bank 12,414,984 8,913,707 
Short term investment 28,384,101 13,313,012 

 44,154,963 25,164,420 

Allowance for Expected  Credit Loss (ECL) (151) (64) 
  

44,154,812 
 

25,164,356 

13.  Investment security at amor�sed cost 

 
2024 2023 

Fixed deposits 16,948,265 17,098,265 
Government bonds 36,311,993 34,946,964

 
Gross carrying amount 

 
53,260,258 

 
52,045,229 

Allowance for ExpectedCreditLoss (ECL) (11,484,451) (11,031,833)
 

41,775,807 41,013,396 

Balance at 1 January 
 

339,759 291,649 

Addi�on  57,732 48,110 
   

397,491 
 

339,759 

Loans and advances to customers 
 

17,076,898 11,705,672 

Less allowance for impairment  (643,065) (613,111) 
  

Loans and advances to customers at amor�sed cost 

  
16,433,833 

 
11,092,561 

     

 
 

Term loans 12,275,027 (363,750) 11,911,277 8,108,545 (262,000) 7,846,545 

Overdra�s 3,811,050 (206,169) 3,604,881 2,893,752 (325,553) 2,568,198 
Staff loans 990,821 (73,146) 917,675 703,375 (25,558) 677,817 

  
17,076,898 

 
(643,065) 

 
16,433,833 

 
11,705,672 

 
(613,111) 

 
11,092,561 

 14.  Investment in securi�es at FVOCI  2024 2023 

 
15. Loans and advances to customers 

 
2024 

 
2023 

 
15.1 

 
2024 

 
2023 

Gross carrying ECL Carrying Gross carrying ECL Carrying 

 amount allowance amount amount allowance amount 
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15.2 ECL reconcilia�on with BOG loan loss provision 2024 2023 

Provision per Bank of Ghana 828,651 829,668 
Provision per IFRS 643,065 613,111 

 
Credit risk reserve 

 
185,586 

 
216,557 

 

Prepayments 224,667 208,870 

Office account 77,091 27,953 

Deferred expense (prepaid employee benefit) 412,565 255,337 

Sta�onery stock 132,376 200,821 

Deferred CAGD commission 166,437 229,770 

Others 4,722 30,132 

  
1,017,858 

 
952,883 

Land & Building 4,026,690 - - - 4,026,690 

Furniture and  Equipment 1,354,716 118,792 - - 1,473,508 

Computers 709,390 54,982 (5,000) - 759,372 

Motor vehicles 375,238 - - - 375,238 

Capital work in progress 34,350 - - - 34,350 

 
Total 

 
6,500,384 

 
173,774 

 
(5,000) 

 
- 

 
6,669,158 

 

Land & Building 973,163 114,368 - - 1,087,531 

Furniture and Equipment 1,249,081 54,671 - - 1,303,752 
Computers 708,803 10,308 (413) - 718,698 
Motor vehicles 375,238 - - - 375,238 
Capital work in progress - - - - - 

 
Total 

 
3,306,285 

 
179,347 

 
(413) 

 
- 

 
3,485,219 

Land & Building 
    

2,939,159 
Furniture and equipment     169,756 
Computers     40,674 
Motor vehicles     - 

Capital work in progress     34,350 

 
 

31st December, 2024 

     
 

3,183,939 

16.  Other assets 2024 2023 

17.  Property, plant and  equipment 2024 

 
Cost/valua�on 1 January Addi�ons Disposal Adjustment 31 December 

 
Accumulated  deprecia�on 

 

 
1 January 

 

 
Charge for 

 

 
Disposal 

 

 
Adjustment 

 

 
31 December 

  the year    

Carrying  value: 
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17.1. Property and  equipment 2023 

 
Cost/valua�on 1 January Addi�ons Disposal Adjustment 31 December 

Land & Building 4,026,690 - - - 4,026,690 
Furniture and   Equipment 1,277,185 77,531 - - 1,354,716 

Computers 709,390 - - - 709,390 
Motor vehicles 375,238 - - - 375,238 
Capital work in progress 34,350 - - - 34,350 

 
 

Total 

 
 

6,422,853 

 
 

77,531 

 
 
- 

 
 

- 

 
 

6,500,384 

Land & Building 858,796 114,367 - - 973,163 
Furniture and Equipment 1,176,120 72,961 - - 1,249,081 
Computers 704,585 4,218 - - 708,803 
Motor vehicles 375,238  - - 375,238 
Capital work in progress - - - - - 

 
Total 

 
3,144,739 

 
191,546 

 
- 

 
- 

 
3,306,285 

Land & Building 
    

3,053,527 
Furniture and equipment     105,635 
Computers     587 
Motor vehicles 
Capital work in progress 

    - 
34,350 

 

31st December, 2023 

     

3,194,099 

 

 
Accumulated deprecia�on 

 

 
1 January 

 

 
Charge for the 

 

 
Disposal 

 

 
Adjustment 

 

 
31 December 

  year    

 
Carrying value: 

     

Computer so�ware 976,033 2,000 
 

- 978,033 

 
 

Accumulated amor�za�on 

 
 

1 January 

 
 

Charge 

 
 

Disposal 
31 December 

Computer so�ware 797,992 33,336 - 831,328      

18.  Intangible asset  

Cost/ valua�on 2024 1 January Addi�ons Disposal 31 December 

 
Carrying value 

  
31st December, 2024 

     
146,705 
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18.1. Intangible  asset 

Cost/ valua�on 2023 1 January Addi�ons Disposal

 

31 December 

Right of use asset 968,445 - 
 

- 968,445 
  

Accumulated deprecia�on             
  
1 January  

  
Charge 

  
Disposal 

  
31 December 

Right of use asset 240,879 58,167 - 299,046 

 
 

Carrying value 
    

 
31st December, 2024 

    
669,399 

     

Right of use asset 823,445  145,000 - 968,445 

  
Accumulated deprecia�on 

  
1 January  

  
Charge 

  
Disposal 

  
31 December 

Right of use asset 182,710 58,169 - 240,879 

 
 Carrying value 

    

 
31st December, 2023 

    
727,566 

 
Computer so�ware 

 
976,034 

 
- 

 
- 

 
976,033 

19.  Right of use asset 

Cost/ valua�on 2024 
 
1 January 

 
Addi�ons 

 
Disposal 

 

31 December 

19.1. Right of use asset 

Cost/ valua�on 2023 

 

 
1  January  

 

 
Addi�ons 

 

 
Disposal 

 

 
31 December 

 Number Amount Number Amount 

Authorised no. of shares of no 
par value 
Issued and fully paid 

25,000,000  25,000,000  

Issued for cash considera�on 18,729,813 2,075,305 18,729,813 2,075,305 

 
18,729,813 2,075,305 18,729,813 2,075,305  

There is no unpaid liability on shares. There are no treasury shares and there are no calls or installment unpaid

 20.  Stated capital 

 

2024 

 

2023 
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Accumulated amor�za�on   
 

1 January  
 

Charge  
 
Disposal  

 
31 December 

Computer so�ware 693,238 104,754 - 797,992 

 

 Carrying value

    

 
31st December, 2023 

    
178,041 

 



21. Deposit for shares

This represents shares issued but yet to be regularized with the Office of the Registrar of 
Companies.

22.  Customer Deposits 2024 2023 

Savings accounts 57,536,310 41,354,944 
Susu deposit account 14,742,026 12,092,672 
Current account deposit 15,564,020 14,792,365 
Fixed deposit 9,952,850 9,233,895 

 

97,795,206 77,473,876 

 
23. Provisions 

 
2024 

 
2023 

La Community Development and Educa�onal 

  

Fund (LACDF) 
La Township Development Fund  150,316 50,316 
La Educa�onal Fund 103,637 3,637 

  
253,953 

 
53,953 

Balance as at 1 January 53,953 53,953 

Addi�onal provisions during the year 200,00 

Provision u�lised during the year - 

- 

- 

  
253,953 

 
53,953 

 
Balance at 1 January 98,628 93,210 

 Finance cost on lease liability 
800

 

Lease payment -

5,418 

- 

 

99,428 98,628 

  
 

25.  Dividend payable 2024 2023 

Balance as at 1st January 942,894 943,992 
Payment during the year (2,451) (1,098) 

 
Balance at 31st December 

 
940,443 

 
942,894 

 

 23.1 Reconcilia�on of LACDF 2024 2023 

24.  Lease liability 2024 
 

2023 
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26. Other liabili�es 2024 2023 

Bills payable 882,408 88,592 

Accrued expenses 612,307 719,493 

Audit fees 73,455 60,950 

*Others 1,626,151 373,377 

  
3,194,321 

 
1,242,412 

 * This includes an amount of GHC 906,389 which represents customer Treasury bills matured, awai�ng 
repurchase.

27.  Cash generated from/ (used in) opera�ons 
2024 2023 

Cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es: 
  

Profit before tax 4,287,589 2,129,057 

Adjustment for : 
  

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on 270,849 354,468 
Net Impairment loss on financial assets 482,660 860,598 
Finance Cost on lease liability 800 5,418 

Loss on disposal 1,024 - 

Prior year adjustment - (133,310) 

 
Cash inflow before changes in assets and liabili�es 

 
5,042,922 

 
3,216,231 

Changes in assets and liabili�es 

  

Loans and advances (5,371,226) (4,641,074) 
Other assets (64,975) (221,442) 

Deposits from customers 20,321,329 12,324,890 

Other liabili�es 1,951,974 (4,182,052) 

Cash generated from/ (used in) opera�ons 21,880,024 6,496,553 

  

 

28.   Capital commitments

There were no outstanding capital commitments as at 31st December 2024 (2023 Nil).

29.   Con�ngencies

There were no con�ngent assets and liabili�es or capital commitments as at 31st December, 2024 
(2023: Nil).

30.  Legal confirma�on

The Bank was involved in a number of legal proceedings as at 31 December 2024. These include 
ac�ons ins�tuted by other third par�es against the Bank, as well as ac�ons ins�tuted by the Bank 
against its customers. No provision has been made in these financial statements, as Management 
does not consider that there is any probable loss arising from these ma�ers. Legal proceedings 
involving the Bank as at the end of the repor�ng period are summarized below:
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Nii Armah Ashitey v La Community Bank Ltd

The Plain�ff ins�tuted legal ac�on against the Bank seeking, among others, an order for the Bank to 
provide a copy of a purported garnishee order, specific damages of GHC 10,000, general damages of 
GHC 1,000,000, and associated costs. The court struck out the Bank's Chief Execu�ve Officer as a 
party, leaving the Bank as the sole defendant. Pleadings have been completed, and the case is 
ongoing. Based on legal advice, Management assesses the risk of a material loss as low.

La Community Bank Ltd v Oyek Fashion Industry & 2 Ors

The Bank commenced legal ac�on to recover an outstanding loan balance of GHC 258,384.89, 
interest, and associated costs. Following an unsuccessful Alterna�ve Dispute Resolu�on a�empt, the 
ma�er is scheduled for trial on 2 April 2025. Management considers the chances of success to be 
moderate, no�ng a possibility of contributory negligence on the part of the Bank.

31. Related party disclosures

The objec�ve of IAS 24 related party disclosure is to ensure that an en�ty's financial statements 
contain the disclosures necessary to draw a�en�on to the possibility that its financial posi�on and 
profit or loss may have been affected by the existence of related par�es and by transac�ons and 
outstanding balances with such par�es.

A related party is a person or en�ty that is related to the en�ty that is preparing its financial 
statements referred to as the repor�ng en�ty.
a)   A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a repor�ng en�ty if that person:
• has control or joint control over the repor�ng en�ty;
• has significant influence over the repor�ng en�ty; or
• is a member of the key management personnel of the repor�ng en�ty or of a parent of the 

repor�ng en�ty?
b)   An en�ty is related to a repor�ng en�ty if any of the following condi�ons applies:
• The en�ty and the repor�ng en�ty are members of the same group (which means that each    

parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
• One en�ty is an associate or joint venture of the other en�ty (or an associate or joint venture of a 

of a member of a group of which the other en�ty is a member).
• Both en��es are joint ventures of the same third party.
• One en�ty is a joint venture of a third en�ty and the other en�ty is an associate of the third en�ty 
• The en�ty is a post-employment defined benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

repor�ng en�ty or an en�ty related to the repor�ng en�ty. If the repor�ng en�ty is itself such a 
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the repor�ng en�ty.

• The en�ty is controlled or jointly controlled by a person iden�fied in (a).
• A person iden�fied in (a)(i) has significant influence over the en�ty or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the en�ty (or of a parent of the en�ty).
• The en�ty, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 

services to the repor�ng en�ty or to the parent of the repor�ng en�ty.
The following are deemed not to be related for the repor�ng purposes of La Community Bank Limited
• two en��es simply because they have a director or key manager in common.
• two venturers who share joint control over a joint venture.
• providers of finance, trade unions, public u�li�es, and departments and agencies of a 

government that does not control, jointly control or significantly influence the repor�ng en�ty, 
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simply by virtue of their normal dealings with an en�ty (even though they may affect the freedom 
of ac�on of an en�ty or par�cipate in its decision- making process).

• a single customer, supplier, franchiser, distributor, or general agent with whom an en�ty transacts 
a significant volume of business merely by virtue of the resul�ng economic dependence.

Related party transac�ons

A related party transac�on is a transfer of resources, services, or obliga�ons between related par�es, 
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Disclosure

Rela�onships between parents and subsidiaries. Regardless of whether there have been transac�ons 
between a parent and a subsidiary, an en�ty must disclose the name of its parent and, if different, the 
ul�mate controlling party. If neither the en�ty's parent nor the ul�mate controlling party produces 
financial statements available for public use, the name of the next most senior parent that does so 
must also be disclosed.
Management compensa�on. Disclose key management personnel compensa�on in total and for 
each of the following categories: short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits, other 
long-term benefits, termina�on benefits and share-based payment benefits.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
direc�ng, and controlling the ac�vi�es of the en�ty, directly or indirectly, including any directors 
(whether execu�ve or otherwise) of the en�ty.

If an en�ty obtains key management personnel services from a management en�ty, the en�ty is not 
required to disclose the compensa�on paid or payable by the management en�ty to the 
management en�ty's employees or directors. Instead the en�ty discloses the amounts incurred by 
the en�ty for the provision of key management personnel services that are provided by the separate 
management en�ty.
Related party transac�ons disclosures cover the nature of the related party rela�onship as well as 
informa�on about the transac�ons and outstanding balances necessary for an understanding of the 
poten�al effect of the rela�onship on the financial statements.

These disclosures would be made separately for each category of related par�es and would include 
the amount of the transac�ons the amount of outstanding balances, including terms and condi�ons 
and guarantees provisions for doub�ul debts related to the amount of outstanding balances expense 
recognised during the period in respect of bad or doub�ul debts due from related par�es.

31.1 Transac�ons with Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The details of transac�ons between the bank and its key management personnel are as follows:

Remunera�on  

Details 2024 2023 

Directors emoluments 301,790 254,450 

Salaries and other benefits (KMP*) 1,218,088 569,467 

 
1,519,878 

 
823,917 

*2024 - KMP comprised of the CEO,, and Departmental Heads. 
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Loans and advances
Loans to Board members and senior management staff are given in line with the policies of the Bank. 
Below are the details:

Details (2024) At start of 
year 

Addi�on Payments Write offs At year 
end 

Firms in which directors are related 
     

Directors      

Officers 612,068 1,065,000 (604,529) -  1,072,539 
Other employees      

  
                  678,895     1,365,000.00         (704,036)                              1,339,859  

 
 

 
 

 
-  

 
 

      

Firms in which directors are related 

Directors - - - - - 

Officers 760,702 359,200 (507,834) - 612,068 
Other employees - - - - - 

 
                  767,703             559,200         (648,009)                                  678,895 - 

 

 
32. Shareholding  structure 

  

     

 32.1 Number of shares outstanding

Earnings and dividend per share are based on 18,994,433 (2023: 18,990,433) ordinary shares 
outstanding.

32.2 Directors shareholding:

The total number of shares of 44,620 held by the Directors of the Bank at the repor�ng date 
represented 0.2350% of the total number of shares outstanding then. Below are the details:

Directors' shareholding as at 31 December 2024

 
Mr.  Seth Nii Sodjah Quao 

 
Chairman 

 
199149 

 
28,940 

 
0.1524 

Dr.  Mrs. Ma�lda E. Pappoe Member 199091 14,680 0.0773 

Mr.  David E.A. Oddoye Member 394701 1,000 0.0053 

   
44,620 0.2350 

 

**Total shares of 264,620 is yet to be regularized with the Office of the Registrar of 
Companies were presented as deposit for shares in 2024.

 
Details (2023) 

 
At start of 

year 

 
Addi�on 

 
Payments 

 
Write offs 

 
At year 

end 

Board of Directors Posi�on Holder numbers Share Percentage(%) of 

shareholding 
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                         66,827       300,000.00            (99,507)                                  267,320 -

Total

Total

                       7,001.           200,000          (140,175)                                    66,827 



32.3 Key Management staff other than the Board of Directors shareholding as at 31/12/2024 

The Bank had 14 staff holding its shares, out of which two (2) were key management personnel as shown below: 

Holder Number Name Number of shares Percentage of 
shareholding 

27296 Vanderpuye Jacobina L.* 4,404 0.0237 

220146 Plange Emmanuel* 10,000 0.0539 

220160 Pobee Edward Magrossis Nii Odoi 5,000 0.0270 

220162 Addy Genevieve 5,000 0.0270 

220197 Addo Thelma Addoley 5,000 0.0270 

220139 Ansah Carol Rebecca 11,000 0.0593 

220161 Te�eh  Victoria 15,065 0.0812 

220220 Ameyibor Vida Aku 2,000 0.0108 

220013 Nortei-Assumeng Rebecca 6,410 0.0346 

391860 Bonsu Doreen 500 0.0027 

391789 Vanderpuye Alfred N.A. 1,500 0.0081 

391876 Te�eh  Kingsley Nyanyo 600 0.0032 

220210 Dowuona Nathaniel 2,000 0.0108 

391782 Laryea Ransford 1,000 0.0054 
 

Total  employee shareholding 
 

69,479 
 

0.5256 
Other than employee share holding 18,924,953 99.4744 

Total  shareholding **18,994,433 100 

*Key Management Personnel 
**Total  shares of 264,260 yet to be regularized with the Office of Registrar of Companies were 
presented as deposit for shares in 2024. 

33.       Financial risk management 

Financial risk factors

The Bank's ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks and those ac�vi�es involve the analysis, 
evalua�on, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combina�on of risks. Taking risk is 
core to the financial business, and the opera�onal risks are an inevitable consequence of being in 
business. The Bank is exposed to a variety of financial risks which include market risk (including 
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Bank's overall risk management programme seeks, to achieve an appropriate balance between 
risk and return and minimize poten�al adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance. The 
Bank's risk management policies are designed to iden�fy and analyze these risks, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to date informa�on systems. Management regularly reviews the Bank's risk management policies 
and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best prac�ce.

The objec�ve of Management is to ensure that the Bank carries out its opera�ons in manner that 
ensure that risks are balanced with rewards. Management ensures that the Bank complies with all 
regulatory guidelines in the pursuit of profitable opportuni�es while avoiding excessive, unnecessary 
and uncontrollable risk exposures. Financial risk is an inherent feature in the business ac�vi�es of the 
Bank, and therefore Management has put in place various mi�ga�ng criteria to prevent their 
occurrence.
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The internal audit func�on plays a key role in providing an objec�ve view and con�nuous assessment 
of the effec�veness of the internal control systems in the Bank. The system of internal controls are 
implemented and monitored by appropriately trained personnel whose du�es and repor�ng lines 
are clearly defined.

The Bank's primary defense against risks of losses is its approved policies, procedures and systems of 
internal controls. In addi�on, internal control mechanisms ensure that appropriate ac�on is taken 
when iden�fied risk pass acceptable levels, as approved by the Board of Directors. Internal control, 
from �me to �me, reviews and assesses the adequacy of procedures and controls.

The Bank uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risk to which it is 
exposed. These methods are explained below:

33.1 Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from 
open posi�ons in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and 
specific market movements and changes in the level of vola�lity of market rates or prices such as 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

33.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctua�ons in the prevailing levels of markets interest 
rates on the fair value of financial assets and liabili�es and future cash flows. The Bank holds fixed 
interest-bearing securi�es and debt that expose the Bank to interest rate risk. The Bank manages 
interest rate risk by measuring the mismatch of the interest rate sensi�vity gap of financial assets and 
liabili�es.
The tables below summarize the Bank's exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Bank's financial 
instruments at carrying amounts categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity 
dates.

33.3 Credit risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in 
full when they fall due. The Bank is exposed to counterparty risk on cash and cash equivalents, 
amounts due from financial ins�tu�ons and other receivable balances. It is also exposed to other 
credit risks arising from investments in debt securi�es.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements at 31 December 2024 is the 
carrying amount of the financial assets as set out below:

 Notes 2024 2023 

Balance with other banks 
  

42,968,047 25,164,420 

Investment securi�es at amor�sed cost   53,260,258 52,045,230 

Loans and advances   17,076,898 11,705,672 

113,305,203 88,915,331 
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31 December,  2024 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Balance with other banks 42,968,047 - - 42,968,047 

Investment securi�es at amor�sed cost 42,836,571 - 10,423,687 53,260,258 
Loans and advances 16,615,169 77,689 384,040 17,076,898 

 
102,419,787 77,689 10,807,727 113,305,203 

 
31 December,  2023 

 
Stage 1 

 
Stage 2 

 
Stage 3 

 
Total 

Balance with other banks 25,164,420 - - 25,164,420 

Investment securi�es at amor�sed cost 41,621,543 - 10,423,687 52,045,230 
Loans and advances 10,806,883 171,944 726,854 11,705,672 

 
77,592,846 171,944 11,150,541 88,915,331 

 

33.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to se�le its 
obliga�ons in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Bank manages this risk by ensuring that it has access to a variety of funding sources. Par�cular 
a�en�on is paid to marketability of assets, whose availability for sale or as collateral for refinance is 
evaluated under different market scenarios. Consequently, the Bank monitors any factors that may 
impact nega�vely on its capability to remain liquid. It is the policy of the Bank to invest in short-term 
securi�es that could be readily disposed. Management monitors its liquidity posi�on on daily basis 
and the Board reviews it at its board mee�ngs.

Non-deriva�ve financial assets and liabili�es held for managing liquidity risk
The table below analyses the Bank's financial assets and liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining year at the repor�ng date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in 
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Assets 
      

Cash and cash equivalents 44,154,963 - - - 44,154,963 44,154,963 
Investment at amor�sed cost - - - 41,775,807 41,775,807 41,775,807 
Loans and Advances 694,475 89,444 - 16,292,979 17,076,898 17,076,898 
Other assets 214,189  224,667 579,002 1,017,858 1,017,858 

Total  assets 45,063,627 89,444 224,667 58,647,788 104,025,526 104,025,526 
 

Liabili�es 
Demand and savings 

 

 
87,842,356 

 

 
- 

 

 
- 

 

 
- 

 

 
87,842,356 

 

 
87,842,356 

Time deposits 6,925,280 - 2,673,645 353,925 9,952,850 9,952,850 
Other liabili�es (dividend &       

bill) 4,444,540    4,444,540 4,444,540 

Total  liabili�es 99,212,176 - 2,673,645 353,925 102,239,746 102,239,746 

 
Net Liquidity gap (2024) 

      
1,785,780 

Net Liquidity gap (2023)      8,288,992 

Liquidity 2024 0 -3 months 4 – 6 
months 

7 – 12 
months 

Above 1 
year 

Total Carrying 
amount 
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33.5 Capital risk management

The capital of the Bank is represented by the net assets a�ributable to Equity Shareholders of the 
Bank. The amount of net asset a�ributable to Equity Shareholders can change significantly 
depending on the quality of its asset's por�olio. The Bank's objec�ve for managing capital is to:

• Comply with the capital requirements set out by the Bank of Ghana;
• Safeguard the Bank's ability to con�nue as a going concern in order to provide returns for 

Shareholders;
• Maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The Board of Directors and Management monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets 
a�ributable to Equity Shareholders of the Bank.

34. Fair value es�ma�on 
              Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valua�on techniques based on whether the inputs to those valua�on 
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from 
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank's market assump�ons. These two types 
of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

• Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es. This 
level includes listed equity securi�es and debt instruments on exchanges (for example, The Ghana 
Stock Exchange).

• Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

• Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant 
unobservable components. This hierarchy requires the use of observa�on market data when 
available. The Bank considers relevant and observable market prices in its valua�on when possible. 
The fair value of the Bank's financial assets and liabili�es approximate the respec�ve carrying 
amounts, due to the generally short years to maturity dates.

a)  Fair value hierarchy
This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank considers 
relevant observable market prices in its valua�on where possible. There has been no movement of 
financial instruments between different levels in the current year.

Financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December were classified as follows:
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

2024 
    

Financial assets     

Investment securi�es at FVOCI - - 397,491 397,491 

2023 
Financial assets 

    

Investment securi�es at FVOCI - - 339,759 339,759 
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35 Stated capital and reserves

35.1 Stated capital

The stated capital of a Bank shall consist of the sum of the following items:

(a) the total proceeds of every issue of shares for cash, including any amounts paid on calls made 
on shares issued with an unpaid liability, without any deduc�ons for expenses or commissions;

(b) the total value of the considera�on, as stated in the agreement, received for every issue of 
shares otherwise than for cash;

(c) the total amount which the Bank by special resolu�on shall have resolved to transfer to stated 
capital from surplus, as defined in sec�on 68 of the Companies Act, (Act 992) including the credit 
balance on the share deals account referred to in sec�on 63 of the above Act

35.2 Statutory reserve fund

The Statutory reserve fund is required under Sec�on 34 of the Banks and Specialized Act, 2016 (Act 
930) and is elaborated as follows:

3.   (a) A bank or specialized deposit taking Ins�tu�on shall establish and maintain a Reserve Fund 
into which shall be transferred to net profit each year.

Transfer to statutory reserve
• Where the amount of Reserve Fund is less than fi�y per cent of the paid-up capital of the bank or 

specialized deposit-taking ins�tu�on, an amount which is not less than fi�y per cent of the net 
profit for the year;

• Where the amount of Reserve Fund is fi�y per cent or more but less than one hundred per cent of 
the paid-up capital of the bank or specialized deposit-taking ins�tu�on, an amount which is not 
less than twenty-five per cent of the net profit for the year;

• Where the amount of the Reserve Fund is equal to hundred per cent or more of the paid-up 
capital of the bank or specialized deposit-taking ins�tu�on, an amount equal to twelve and half 
per cent of the net profit for the year.

The transfer required under subsec�on (1) shall be made:
• before the declara�on of interim or final dividends, and

• a�er making provision for tax

(b)  Reserves

The reserves of the Bank in accordance with sec�on 70 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) is the 
amount of money by which the assets of the Bank, other than unpaid calls and other sums of money 
payable in respect of the shares of the Bank and not including treasury shares, less the liabili�es of 
the Bank, as shown in the accounts of the Bank prepared and audited in accordance with sec�ons 127 
to 142, exceed the stated capital of the Bank.
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(c) Retained earnings

The retained earnings of a Bank is the reserves as defined above less amounts of money a�ributable 
to
• an unrealized apprecia�on in the value of an asset of the Bank, other than such an apprecia�on in 

the value of an asset as would, under normal accoun�ng principles, would be credited to profit or 
loss, unless the amount of such apprecia�on has been transferred to stated capital; and

• a balance standing to the credit of the share deals account immediately before the ascertainment 
of the retained earnings.

(b) Capital adequacy 

Tier 1 capital 8,352,912 5,405,695 

Tier 2 capital 507,735 503,735 

Total  regulatory capital 8,596,027 5,648,810 

Adjusted capital base (a) 8,116,451 5,131,010 

Adjusted asset base (b) 63,673,286 42,011,939 
Capital adequacy ra�o (a/b) 13.06% 

Capital surplus (adjusted capital base(a) less 10% of adjusted   

asset base(b) 
1,949,122 929,816 

 
2024 2023 

Capital adequacy by BoG 10% 10% 

Capital adequacy of the Bank 12.75% 12.21% 

 

36. Events a�er repor�ng date

The Bank adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect events that provide 
evidence of condi�ons that existed at the statement of financial posi�on date.

Where there are material events that are indica�ve of condi�ons that arose a�er the repor�ng date, 
(material non adjus�ng events) the Company discloses, by way of note, the nature of the event and 
the es�mate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an es�mate cannot be made.

37. Compara�ves

Except when a standard or an interpreta�on permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported 
or disclosed with compara�ve informa�on.

Where IAS 8 applies, compara�ve figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presenta�on in the current year.

Regulatory capital 2024 2023 
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38.  Value added statement 2024 2023 

Interest and banking income 17,049,569 13,212,037 
Direct

 
cost

 
(1,717,596)

 
(1,329,240)

 

Value added by banking services 15,331,973 11,882,797 
Non-banking income 24,379 32,790 
Impairment (482,660) (860,598) 

 

 

Value added 
 

 

14,873,692 11,054,989 

Distributed as follows 

To employees: 

Directors 

 

 
(357,400) 

 

 
(224,450) 

Other employees 
To Government: 

(6,351,806) (5,460,412) 

Income tax 
Bank’s expansion and growth: 

Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on 

(1,344,371) 

 
(270,849) 

(835,199) 

 
(354,468) 

Other opera�ng cost (3,606,048) (2,886,602) 

 
To retained earnings 

 
2,943,218 

 
1,293,858 

39. Shareholders’ informa�on   

39.1 Shareholding distribu�on as at 31 December, 2024   

Holding Number of 
shareholders

Percentage of 
shareholders (%)

Number of 
shares

Percentage of holding (%) 

 
1-1,000 

 
1,668 

 
45.58 

 
1,049,342 

 
5.52 

1,001-5,000 1,462 39.99 3,653,365 19.23 
5,001-10,000 299 8.19 2,231,068 11.75 

10,001-50,000 194 5.31 3,770,064 19.85 
Over 50,000 34 0.93 8,290,594 43.66 

 
3,657 100 18,994,433* 100 

*Total shares of 264,620, yet to be regularized with the Office of the Registrar of 
Companies were presented as deposit for shares in 2024.
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Number Customer number Shareholders Number of 
shares 

Percentage of 
shareholding 

1. 198520 La Mansaamo Kpee (LMK) 2,872,780 15.3183 

2. 219916 Panyin Isaac Karikari 602,300 3.1716 

3. 378807 Supreme Council of Nma� Abonase 500,000 2.6661 

4. 199399 Dr.  Sowa Nii Kwaku 398,340 2.0975 

5. 197579 Amarteifio Amarkai 349,100 1.8615 

6. 198309 Asante Kweku Baprui 333,940 1.7806 

7. 23365 Gogo Benjamin Akuete 255,000 1.3597 

8. 382591 Annang Ted Yemoh Dr 235,000 1.2375 

9. 197527 Akue�eh Laud Samuel Nsiah 228,190 1.2168 

10. 380576 Pappoe Augustus Mr. 220,000 1.1731 

11. 29657 Dr.  Anteson Geoffrey A.C.B. 210,000 1.1324 

12. 36578 Adjei Seth Adjete Mr 203,129 1.0696 

13 26474 Obodai Benjamin 148,400 0.78144 

14 387641 Kissiedu Eva 134,200 0.7156 

15 199354 Sankah Daniel R.K. 110,680 0.5902 

16 198829 Nuhu Vivian Akweley Norley 110,000 0.5865 

17 197495 Adjetey Janet Atswei 106,400 0.5673 

18 48195 Dadzie Samuel 104,000 0.5476 

19 214373 Ga Presbytery 100,000 0.5332 

20 219876 Prof Glover Ablade 100,000 0.5332 

   7,221,459 38.030 
21.  Others 11,768,974 61.970 

   18,994,433* 100% 

 

*Total shares of 264,620 yet to be regularised with the Office of the Registrar of 
Companies were presented as deposit for shares in 2024.

39.2 Twenty largest Shareholders as at 31 December, 2024

73



74



75



76



LA COMMUNITY BANK LIMITED


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78

